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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Strategic Report

The Directors present therr strategic report for Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019

Principal activity

The Group's principal activity during the year was the operaton of commercial radio stations in the Urnited Kingdom,
although the Group has diversified into out-of-home media advertising dunng the year

Business review

This business review gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to Global Media &
Entertainment Limited and its subsidrary undertakings (1 @ the Group) when viewed as a whole

The Group’s revenue has grown for the tenth consecutive year, 24% up on prior year, organically and through
acquisitons This has been supported by increased engagement with the Global portfolio of brands, both through
innovative content for consumers and through creatwe partnerning with clients Total hours have increased 1.7%
year on year, with listeners engaging with 233 1m hours of radio content in this financial year’, as well as the
Group's strongest performance to date from content solutions partnerships

Commercial revenue has continued to outperform the market in revenue terms, increasing by 7% against market
growth of 2%

Global's Digital Audio Exchange (DAX) remans the world's largest digital audio advertising platform and 1s a key
player in the programmatic advertising arena, with a growing number of publishers selling their inventory through
DAX In the UK alone, the number of publishers has almost tnpled year on year to 44 (2018 16) The market
remains dynamic and advertisers are increasingly directing greater levels of spend fowards tools and channels
which allow more targeted and transparent campaigns The Group further extended its reach into Nerth Amerca
through the acquisiton of Leanstream Inc in Canada.

Digital engagement with Global's brands has grown year on year, with average monthly umque engagements up
30% in 2018-19. The Group has also continued to invest In the Global Player, improving functionality through
sustained technological innovation, while growing the user base

This year has seen Global continue to diversify its revenue streams beyond traditional airime, making a senes of
acquisitions n the out-of-home sectar, purchasing Qutdoor Plus, Primesight and Exteriocn Global will be able to
reach more consumers than ever befare and generate significant synergies through the integraton of these
businesses

The Group's adjusted EBITDA3? of £117 2m increased by 13% on the prior year figure of £104 Om Adjusted EBITDA
margin dropped slightly from 27% to 24%, generating a statutory loss of £32 7m compared to the prior year profit
of £19 7m, largely due to increased digital investment, costs of entenng the out-of-home advertsing market and
the impact of refinancing within the Group

In Gctober 2018, Gfcom amended the reguiations around local programming to ensure that radio broadcasting was
able to remain competitive amidst changing listener habits and an increasingly digitised landscape  Global
responded by launching nationwide breakfast shows across Capital and Heart, and announcing a national drivetime
show on Smooth. The changes will allow the Group to offer true national competition to the breakfast shows across
DBC Radio 1 and Radio 2

Now In its second year, the prestgious Global Awards brought together ail of Global's radio stations, inciuding
Capital, Heart, Smooth, Classic FM, LBC, Radio X, Capital XTRA and Gold, with award categories reflecting the
music, programmes and news aired throughout the year Global has continued to host world-class live music, from
small-scale gigs with Radio X and Heart, to Capital's long-established stadium events, secuning internationally-
renowned talent across the brand portfalio )

At the end of the financial year, the Group sought to dispose of its interests in music festivals to allow the Group to
focus un the oppurtunilies offered by the new Outdoor division  The Group has recorded an impaimment to goodwaill
and brand values during the year (note 10) The transactions occurred after the reporting date, with the majority
completed at the date of signing

Global's Make Some Noise, the Group's charity, continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and young
people and to give a voice 1o smaller charibes that find it hard to get heard  Global's Make Some Nose raised over
£4 5m (2018 £3 7m) in the year, awarding grants to 31 charities and projects across the UK. Since its launch in

' RAJAR website
? Radiocentre website
3 As defined in the appendix to the accaunts



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued)

2014, Global's Make Some Noise has raised mare than £15 million for 224 charities around the UK, helping more
than 73,000 children and young people

Global continues to sponser the Global Academy, a university technical college in Hayes, Middlesex, which opened
in 2016 and provides academic and vocational education for students who want to work in the broadcast and digital
meda industry

In December 2018, the Group undertook refinancing of its external banking facilites, entering new term loans for
£350 Om, and completed a restructuring of shareholder debt No shares were issued or converted during the year

Financial performance

The consolidated income statement 1s set out on page 20 and shows revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019
of £480 Om, an increase of 24% on last year's figure of £388 Om Operating profit of £42 3m decreased by £40 8m
compared to last year's figure of £83 1m Operating profit i1s stated after charging depreciation of £11 5m (2018
£4 4m) and amortisation of £25 1m (2018 £19 4m) The ioss before taxation of £19 4m (2018: profit of £25 1m) s
largely due to revenue growth offset by deal-related costs, non-recurnng items, impairment of assets and increased
finance charges as a result of the debt restructuring

The Directors consider that adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the appendix to the Group Financial Statements)
represents a key measure of the business perfoermance as it demonstrates the underlying trading by excluding the
effects of non-recurring items The results for the year set out below show growth of £13 2m (13%) n adjusted
EBITDA from £104 Om in 2018 {0 £117 2m for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£m £m

Radio 358.4 3295
Cutdoor (note 1) 52.0 -
Music festivals 69.6 585
Total revenue 480.0 3880

Direct costs (166.2) (107 2)
Gross profit 313.8 2808

Other cperating costs (note 2) (196.6) (176 8)
Adjusted EBITDA (appendix) . 117.2 104 0

Note 1 Outdoor compnises Qutdoor Plus and Primesight consolidated from the dates of acquisition, and excludes
Exterion

Note 2 Other operating costs represent administrative expenses and exclude depreciahon, amortisation and
impairment, as well as charges or credits relating to non-recurning items, which include restructuring and integration
costs, such as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant property provisions Costs
assoclated with acquisitions are also excluded This 1s consistent with prior year

As defined in the appendix to the accounts, adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation and 1s stated befare any charges or credits relating to non-recurring items including restructuring
and integration costs, such as taunch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant property pravisions,
as weil as costs of acquisition This classificatron 1s consistent with prior year

Going concern

At 31 March 2019 the Group had net sabilites of £368 6m (2018 £331 7m) The Directors confirm that, after making
enquines, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources and the support of the
holders of the related party loans, principally owed to owner-shareholders, to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
these financial statements Further information around the assessment of going concern can be found in note 1 of
the financial statements

Future developments

The Directors believe that the year ended 31 March 2019 reflected a return to the Radio operating segment’s typical
trading levels after the prior year's exceptional results The Group expects moderate but stable growth across its
commercial radio and out-of-home advertising operations in the short and medium term, although the wider market
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Group Strategic Report (continued)

outlook remains uncertain  The Directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow and expand the
exishng business

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal nsks faced by the busingss can be divided into operational, commercial, financial, credit and liquidity
nsks The nsks are monitored and managed at a Group level and by local management teams

Operational risk

Audience levels at the Group's stations could erode the Group's position, both in local markets and in the national
marketgtace, if they were to decline To address this, the Group markets its radio brands regularly and continually
strives to improve programming standards to increase audiences, investing in the best on-ai talent in order to
create high-quality content The Group carries out research on its listeners, building profiles of their ikes and
dishkes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music they play

The Group has tried to mitigate these risks by extending its presence in the digital advertising market with further
investment in #ts DAX proposition, including international expanston, and by diversifying into out-of-home media, In
arder to extend its impact across a wider consumer bhase

Commercial risk

There is a nsk that weakness (n the advertising market could put pressure on traditional revenue streams. To
address this, the Group has been developing Its refationship with advertisers and agencies to ensure that the value
of its brands 1s fully realised This includes offering tallcred solutions to advertisers and highlighting the breadth of
the Group’s products, which was enhanced with the creation of the new QOutdeor division The development of new
media epportunities is at the heart of the Group's strategy, which will continue to reduce the pressure on traditional
revenue generators

While the impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Untan remains uncertain and hard to assess, based
on current UK growth forecasts there 1s a nsk that revenues wilt be lower than forecast in the coming years In
addition, there are other related factors which affect the Group, for exampie, the impact of a tougher UK business
environment on Iinterest rates and therefore long-term bond yields and the Group pension habtlities, or changes in
foreign exchange rates, as the Group expands internationally and increases trading i other currencies

The Group has analysed the potential impact on the business of a financial daownturn through detalled scenano
modeling and assessments of performance during histornc econemic recessions  ln a downside scenario, the
Group would implement various cost reduction strategies in order to preserve margin performance and nc breach
of financial covenants woulg be expected as a result

Financial risk

The Group 1s primarily funded by both related party and bank debt Bank debt increased In the year after the
refinancing in December 2018 The Group's operations are cash-generative, and general exposure to liquidity nsk
1s considered to be low The Group monitors performance against its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

Credit risk

The Group actively mitigates the fnisk of payment default by 1ts customers using trade credit insurance and by
regularly reviewng outstanding payments and provisions for payment default
Liquidity risk

To maintain hquidity and ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongotng operations and future developments,
the Company uses long-term debt finance The Group has not significantly altered its working capital management
strategies during the year and 1s not subject to any externaliy-imposed requirement in this regard

Key performance indicators

The business uses key performance indicators which are monitored on a regular basts and include audience trends
such as weekly reach, listening hours, share of the market and demographic mix as well as financial ingicators
such as revenue, adjusted EBITDA and operating margins. Variance analysis is perfoarmed monthly, the results of
which are monitored and discussed within a formal meeting structure

This report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

H S«
- YO Y

DD Singer
Director
26 July 2019



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Directors’ Report

The Directors present the Directors’ report and the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019

Results and dividends

The loss for the year after taxation amounted to £32 7m (2018 profit of £19 7m) The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend {2018 £nil)

Directors
The Directors who served dunng the year and to the date of this report were

Lord Allen of Kensington CBE (Chairman)
A D Tabor OBE

S G Miron

RFJ Park

M Gordon

W Harding

I L Hanson

D D Singer

Political and charitable contributions

The Group 18 Involved with several chanties linked to its radio operations and, during the course of the financial year,
the Group's charities were involved in fundraising activities which generated £4 5m (2018 £3 7m) as part of Global's
Make Some Noise The Group's chanties also received funding of £0 4m (2018 £1 5m) for the Big Music Project,
which has been fully funded by grants from The National Lottery Community Fund, previously know as the Big Lottery
Fund, as in the prnior year

As well as providing radio airtime and outdoor inventory to promote the activities and events of its chantes, the Group
provides a number of services to these chanties, including the use of offices and administration services, free of
charge

The Group's donations to chanties amounted to £0 2m (2018 £02m) No coninbutions were made to political
organisations

Future developments

The Directors believe that the level of activity will remain at current levels of growth for the foreseeable future The
Directors continue to explore several opportunities to grow and expand the existing business

Financial instruments

The Group's nisk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of risks are set out In note 20
Detalis of the financial 1nstruments used for these purposes are in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

Non-financial key performance indicators

The Directors regularly assess the performance of the Group with a number of financial indicators, though the main
nen-financial measures are audience figures, as recorded In RAJAR surveys, and outdoor advertising reach, as
measured by Route, a jont industry body producing estimates for out-of-home advertising These figures are used
commercially, in terms of determining campaign vaiue, but also as a guide as to how each brand, location and format
Is performing Both RAJAR results and Route data are based on statistical calculations based on surveys completed
by members of the public, and are published quarterly

Employee involvement

The Group places considerable value on the invoivement of its people and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting therr employment and on a range of factors affectng the performance of the Group and the
Company This 1s achieved through formal and informal meetings, including regular panel interviews with Board
members and presenters, such as James O'Brien and recently Tom Swarbrick, across the Group’s broadcast centres
Employee representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting therr current and future
interests with the majority of the workfarce engaged in shaping the Group's refreshed culture and wellbeing policies

Climate change

The Group takes its environmental stewardship senously, acknowledging its impact at 1ts own sites and from staff
travel Global's transmitters are powered 99% from renewable energy sources through the Group's third party
transmisstons provider, and all offices use sustainable sources of energy  Global continues to pursue a policy of
reducing and recycling waste across its broadcast centres, and has committed to eliminating single-use plastics
backstage at events and throughout offices by December 2019

While climate change 1s not seen as a significant nsk to the group, Global’s belief Is that everyone has a responsibility
to reduce their own impact, and the areas outlined above are the first steps in that direction
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Group Directors’ Report (continued)
Sacial matters and human rights

Global mpacts the social fabnc of the United Kingdom both through its programming and events 1t provides to its
audiences, and also through how it operates as an organisation As an employer, Global seeks to create a socially
diverse environment where indwiduals are able to thrive regardiess of ethnicity, gender, age, disability or sexuality,
and upholds a fairness policy addressing equal opportunities and diversity throughout the Group’s operations

The Group i1s fully committed to ensunng it does not partictpate in, or facilitate, the wviclation of human rights  its
Modern Slavery Act Statement addresses how the Group identifies, addresses and prevents madern slavery In its
business and wider supply chain  This statement 1s avallable on the company website and 1s reviewed annually

GClobal has also published Privacy and Data Protection policies, as well as an information Security policy, detailing

how it manages and stores individuals’ information whether they are employed by, or prowding information to, the
Group

Global interacts with a large number of individuals durnng the ordinary course of its operations and as such, has a

safeguarding policy In place for dealing with children or vulnerable adults to ensure therr safety while they are with
us

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery-

All of the Group's employees are required to read and to acknowledge the policy on anti-corruption and bribery. The
implications of not following the policy are set out in the guide 1ssued and available to all staff

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considerad, bearing in mind the abilites of the
apphicant concerned As a people-focussed business, we make sure that we recruit the nght person for the job every
time, whatever their background

In the event of a member of staff hecoming disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate adjustments are made It s the policy of the Group and the Company that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Directors benefit from qualfying third party indemnity provisions in place The Group also provided qualifying
third-party indemrity provisions to certain Directors of associated comparnies dunng the financial year

Matters covered in the strategic report

Details of the principal risks faced by the Group, including operational, commercial, financial, credit and iquidity nisks,
are discussed in the Group Strategic Report

Provision of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who are Directors at the tme when this Directors' Report s approved has confirmed that
= 30 far as that each Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the Group and the Company's

auditor 1s unaware, and

« that each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director in order to be aware of any
relevant audit iInformation and to establish that the Group and the Company's auditor i aware of that information

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowvisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, Deloitte LLP will be deemed to have been reappointed as auditor
28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date prescnbed for filing
the accounts with the registrar, whichever is earlier

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

4). WA

DD Singe
Director
26 July 2019



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable jaw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law), including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In prepanng the parent caompany financial statements, the Directors are required to

. select suitable accounting poiicies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal

departures disclosed and explaimed in the financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis untess it 15 inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue 1in business

In preparing the group financial statements, Intermational Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

. properly seiect and apply accounting pohcies,

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides retevant, reilable,
comparable and understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity's financial position and financial performance, and

. make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonabie accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staternents may differ
from tegislation in other jurisdictions



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

« the financial statements of Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the ‘parent
company’) and its subsidiaries (the 'Group’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of
the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “"Reduced Discfosure Framework”;
and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
» the Group income statement;
« the Group statement of comprehensive income;
* the Group statement of financial position and parent company balance sheet;
s the Group and parent company statements of changes 1n equity;
+ the Group statement of cash flows; and
s the related notes 1 to 38.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial
statements i1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intefnational Standards on Auditing {(UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Dur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s") Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
optnion.

10
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independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we dentified in the current year were:

« Completeness of Airtime revenue;

« Valuation of related party leans; and

s Qutdoor plus and Prnmesight IFRS 3 acquisition accounting
judgements.

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £6.0m
which was determined using 5% of annualised adjusted EBITDA,
representing a full year's results of Outdoor Plus and Primesight and
excluding Festivals.

Scoping Cur Group audit was split into three separate components:

« Commercial radio broadcasting ("Radio”};
¢ Music festivals {("Festivals”); and
= Qutdoor Plus and Primesight ("Qutdoor”).

We performed a full scope audit in respect of Radio and specified audit
procedures over select account balances for Festivals and Outdoor with a
collective representation of 100% of the Group's revenue and 100% of the
adjusted EBITDA.

Significant Qur FY19 report includes one new key audit matter being the IFRS 3
changes in our acquisition accounting judgements in relation to the Outdoor plus and
approach Primesight acquisitions.

E
|
|
!
|
|
|
|
!
|

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following We have nothing to report
matters where: in respect of these

the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting In matters.

preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified materal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authcrised for I1ssue.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of matenal misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These
matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed |n the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The most significant change in the current year is in respect to the acquisition of Gutdoor Plus and
Primesight, we have included this as a key audit matter below.

Completeness of Airtime revenues

Key audit matter
description

@

Alttime revenues totailed £194.7m in FY19 accounting for 41% of the
Group's revenue. Airtime revenues are generated via placement of customer
advertisements on the Group's radio networks; whereby advertisements are
allocated to pre-determined slots, with the corresponding revenue
recognised at.the point at which the associated advertisement is broadcast.

Billing and revenue recognition processes are highly automated and
dependent on the operating effectiveness of certain key IT controls and the
interfacing capability of the Group’s IT and finance systems. Accordingly,
we consider the completeness of Airtime revenues recognised in the year
ending 31 March 2019 to represent a key audit matter on account of the
reliance placed on the interaction between systems and the guantitative
significance of Airtime revenues recorded (see accounting policy note bb).

How the scope of
our audit

responded to the
key audit matter

We performed the following audit procedures to assess the completeness of
Airtime revenues:

Gained an understanding of the control environment in place, specifically
the processes and controls deployed to mitigate the nsk of material
misstatement;

Assessed the design and implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of relevant automated and manual controls surrounding the
Group’s revenue recognition processes, specifically the reconciliations
performed between scheduling, ptay out and billing systems;

Engaged our internal IT specialists to assess the Group's general IT controls
pertaining to key systems to include review interfacing and flow of
information, report fogic, change management and data export and import
processes; and .

Agreed a sample of advertisements from the tlist of hive broadcasts
throughout the year to the Group’s scheduling and finance systems.

Key observations

We did not identify any material misstatements in the course of our work.
Accordingly we are satisfied as to the completeness of Airtime revenues
recognised in the year.

12
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Valuation of related party loans

Key audit matter The Group is funded in part through related party loans in the form of

description shareholder and senior term lcan notes and loans from its parent and
connected parties (collectively “the loans”). As at 31 March 2019 related
party loans amounted to a fair value of £1,251m (FY18 £649.6m), the
significant increase was owing to the loans received from related parties in

order to fund the Group’s acquisition of Outdoor Plus, Primesight and the
investment n Exterion. See borrowings accounting policy note lu and
critical accounting judgement note 1i.

As set out in note 16 to the Financial Statements, the loans are individually
extended at below (0%) around (7% + Ltbor) and above (10.5% + Libor)
market rates of interest. In line with the requirements of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, management is required to make an assumption as to the
market rate of interest applicable in determining the fair value of related
party loans. Management have determined a market rate of interest to be
7.9%. Owing to the quantitative significance of the loans, the applicable
Iinterest rate 1s considered highly sensitive whereby a marginal change could
result in a material change In the fair value of borrowings recognised.

How the scope of We performed the following audrit procedures to assess the valuation of
our audit related party loans recognised:
responded to the

key audit matter » Gained an understanding of the control environment in place, specifically

the processes and controls deployed to mitigate the risk of materal

misstatement;
- Assessed the design and implementation of relevant controls in respect of

management’s Judgements and calculations;

Challenged management’s assessment of the changes to the loans and
whether these were modifications or extinguishments;

Challenged the reasonableness of the interest rate applied by management
through review of equivalent rates applied by comparable companies in the
sector and calculating cur own independent interest rate;

Chalienged and assessed the mechanicai accuracy of management’s
senstbivity analysis and reviewed the required disclosures;

Assessed the integrity of key inputs and the mechanical accuracy of
management’s fair value calculation through recalculation; and

Obtained copies of supporting agreements to validate keys terms of the
loans and any extensions.

Key observations We did not identify any material misstatements in the course of our work.
Accordingly we are satisfied as to the valuation of the related party lcans.

We considered the disclosure in accounting policy note 11 showing
management’s sensitivity of the discount rate was appropriate.

Outdoor plus and Primesight IFRS 3 acquisition accounting judgements

Key audit matter As described in Note 24, during the year, the Group compieted the

description acquisition of Outdoor plus and Primesight (together “Qutdoor”). The
transactions have been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinations’. £149.3m of goodwitl has been recogmnised, in addition to
£5.6m of net habilities, of which £179.9m represents right-of-use assets.

13



_Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

We have identified a key audit matter in relation to the completeness and
valuation of separately identifiable assets recognised upon acquisition due
to the judgement required in this assessment. See business combinations
accounting policy note 24 and cnitical accounting judgement note 11,

Management's calculation of the price allocation valuation in respect of the
Outdoor tangible fixed assets is provisional as at 31 March 2019 and this
has been disclosed within note 24 of the Financial Statements.

How the scope of We performed the foliowing audit procedures to gain comfort over
our audit management’s assessment of the acquisition balance sheets:
responded to the

key audit matter '+ Gained an understanding of the control environment 1n place, specifically

the processes and controls deployed to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement, and tested management’s implementation of this;
‘ » Performed specified audit procedures on the underlying net liability position;
» Challenged revenue growth and profit margin assumptions considering
historical accuracy of budgeting and benchmark data;
» Engaged our valuation specialists in order to assess the reasonableness of
intangible assets identified and IFRS 3 valuation adjustments;
+ Tested the valuation input data to board approved forecasted data; and
+ Assessed management’'s workings on Goodwiil impairment as at the year

end.
Key observations
We considered that management’s judgement on the valuation of
acquisition net assets is appropriate and is this approach is permitted under
IFRS 3.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {continued)

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it
probahle that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of aur work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a
whole as follows:

Group financial statements i Parent company financial
| statements

1
Materiality £6m (2018 £5m) ' £4.5m (2018: £4.9m)

Basis 11 Our determination of materialty is Parent company materiality equates to
S ETSIDILE I reflective of our consideration of a 2% of company only net liabihities and
materiality range of possible outcomes using an s capped at 75% of Group materiality.
annuahsed adjusted EBITDA and a full

year's results of QOutdoor Plus and

Primesight and excluding Festivals.

Materalty of £6.0m represents 5% of

this measure.

Rationale Adjusted EBITDA s considered to | The parent company holds the Group’s
for LM represent the single most important related party borrowings, these are the
benchmark key performance Indicators of the only instruments of significance in the
applied Group and the area of interest of major parent only financial statements.
stakeholders. ;

Group materiality £6m
Ady FBITDA £117m Comporent

materiality range
£4 8m ta £2 4m
B3'TDA

"1

m L)

Reporting threshotd
£C 3m

m Group marter ality

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report all audit differences in excess of £0.3m
(2018: £0.25m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on qualitative grounds. We alse report to the Board of Directors on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Globat Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates predominantly in the United Kingdom. The parent company and all subsidiaries
of the Group are centrally managed from the head office in London. Cur audit was scoped by
obtaining an understanding of the Group and its contro! enviranment, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement at the Group level. No compenent auditors were engaged as part of our
audit of the Group.

We consider that the Group comprises three key components:

. Radto: the Radio component s considered a financially significant component of the
Group representing 75% of the Group's revenue and 89% of the Group’s adjusted
EBITDA. Accordingly, full scope audit procedures have been performed to a ccmponent
materiality of £4.8m.

. Festivals: Festival entities are individually immaterial to the Group with the aggregate
accounting for 14% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s adjusted EBITDA.
Accordingly, certain specified audit procedures have been performed over selected
account balances using a component materiality of £2.4m.

. Outdoor: The acquired businesses Qutdoor Plus and Primesight are not financially
significant to the Group with the aggregate accounting for 11% of the Group's revenue
and 8% of the Group’s adjusted EBITDA. Accordingly, certain specified audit
procedures have been performed using a component materiality of £2.4m.

The components identified above are consistent with the reportable segments set out in note 2 to
the financial statements and have been selected based on their size in the context of the Group as
a whole.

Our audit work on these components, excluding the parent company, was executed at levels of
materiality ranging hetween £2.4m and £4.8m which were lower than Group materiahty of £6.0m,
Our audit coverage with respect to Group revenue, adjusted EBITDA:

N N

Adjusted

Revenue
EBITDA

m Full audit scope = Full audit scope

u Specified audit procedures w Specified audit procedures
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other We have nothing to report
information comprises the information included in the Group in respect of these
strategic and Group Directors’ report, other than the financial matters.

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we dentify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine 1S necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as appiicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to I1ssue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errcr and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the Group directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financiat statements; and

. the strategic report and the Group directors’ report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements
in the strategic report or the Group directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

;- PR s . ir P R
U7 T L E O U A o - L AP TNIL A U S B U L

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you We have nothing to report
If, in our opinion: in respect of these matters.

« we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

» adeqguate accounting records have nct been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not In
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Do toee 2migne 3000

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if We have nothing to report
in our opmion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have in respect of this matter.
not been made.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A dons u/m_a.

Andrew Evans

FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
Far and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading, UK

26 July 2019

19



Global Media & Entertainment‘ Limited

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 480,045 388,008
Direct costs {166,256) (107.210)
Gross profit 313,789 280,799
Administrative expenses (271,447) (197,703)
Operating profit 3 42,342 83,096
Finance income 18,702 1,211
Finance expense {81,702) (60,431)
Net finance costs (63,000) (59,220)
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 12 1,281 1,260
(Loss) / profit before taxation (19,3717} 25136
Income tax charge 9 (13,360) (5,452)
{Loss) / profit for the year (32,737) 19,684
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company (34,977) 18,666
Non-controling interests 21 2,240 1,018
{32,737) 19,684

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

(Loss) / profit for the year
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial loss related to the pension scheme

Foreign exchange losses
Deferred tax on actuanal ioss

Other comprehensive {loss) / profit for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive {loss) / profit for the year

Attributable to

Owners of the Company
Naon-controling interests

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Note

26

18

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
£000 £'000
(32,737) 19,684
(1,365) (207)
(510)
98 32
(4,777) (175)
(34,514) 19 509
(36,754) 18,491
2,240 1.018
{34,514) 19,509




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2019
Registered number: 06251684

ASSETS

Nan-current assets

Intangible assets

Properly, plant and equpment

Equity accounted investments

Investments

Surplus on defined benefit pension scheme
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

inventory

Curtent tax assets

Trade and other recesvables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Income tax habilities
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Trade and ather payables
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax habilites

Totai liabilities
Net labitities

EQUITY
Share capital
Retained deficit

Attributable to:
Shareholders funds
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Note

10
11
12
13
28
18

14

15
16

17

15
16
17
18

19

21

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £000
716,707 417,046
96,570 26,678
1,464 1,152
428,237 5,780
1,626 1,089
- 1,622
1,244,604 453,367
257 -
124,990 84,104
88,271 57,203
213,518 141,307
1,458,122 504 674
160,475 105,323
64,134 38,294
5,852 3618
1,413 807
231,874 148,042
. 16,332
1,552,349 761,476
10,0851 567
32,419
1,594,819 778.375
1,826,693 926,417
(368,571) (331,743,
171,889 171,889
{540,460) (503,632)
(368,571) (331,743)
(380,292) (344,453)
11,721 12,710
(368,571) (331,743)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 26 July 2019 and

were signed on its behalf by

D D Singer
Director
26 July 2019
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2019

At 1 Aprl 2017
Shares 1ssued In the year
Profit far the yaar

Non-cenireling interest share of profit
Dividends paid io non-controling interests

Non-controlling interests acauired dunng the year
Actuanal ioss related to the pension scheme

Fair value of put option payments

Deferred tax on actuanal loss

At 31 March 2018

At 1 Apri 2012
Shares 1ssued in the year
Prafit for the yaar

Nen-controling interest share of profit
Dividends paid to nan-controlling interests

Nar-controlling interests acguired dunng the year
Actuanal less related to the pension scheme
Forewgn exchange movements

Fair value of put option payments

Deferred tax on actuanat loss

At 31 March 2018

Nole

21
21
21
26

21
21
21

26

Share capttal Put aption Retained deficrt Total Non-contraling Totat equity
reserve nterests
£'000 £000 £'000 E'Q00 £'000 £'000
165 310 (16.679) (509,418} (360,787) 12,128 {348 853}
6,579 - 6,579 - 6,579
- - 18,666 18 666 - 13 868
R . R R 1.018 1018
- - - (1,654) (1 654}
R . . 1,218 1218
- - (207) {207) - (207}
- (8 738) - (8 736} - (8 736)
- - 32 32 - 32
171,889 {25,415) {490,920 {344 453) 12,710 (331,743)
__171 Bag T _(25;_4_15;) {490,927} (344,453} 12 710 {331,743)
. {34 977) (34,977} (34,977}
- - 2,240 2240
- - (3,428) (3 428)
- - 199 199
. {1 385) {1 385) {1 365)
(510) (510) (510}
- 915 915 915
- a8 98 98
171,889 (24,500} {527,681) {380,292) 11,721 {368,571)

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) / profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net finance costs

Share of profits of equity-accounted investments
Movement in retirement benefit obligations
Movement in put option reserve

Profit on disposal of investments

Impairment loss

Income tax charge

Changes in:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

interest recerved

Dividends recetved from associates

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of investments

Additions of property. plant and equipment
Additions of intangibie assets

Proceeds from disposal of imvestments

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of loans and borrowings
Payment of debt 1s5ue costs

Dwidends paid to non-controlling interests

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

i3

10

"

12

13
10

13
11
10

21

24

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £000
(32,737) 16,684
11,543 4,445
25,058 19.412
32 297
63,000 59,220
{1,281} (1,260)
(1,844) 139
[962) {9,083}
(5,874) -
25,419
13,360 5,452
95,714 98,306
{85) -
{4,734) {15,142)
(6,338) 254
2,711 {1,347)
87,268 82,071
(5,129) (3.224)
{9,093) (5,102)
73,046 73,745
28 23
969 1905
(355.938) (5,249)
(428,057) -
(18,702) {6,252)
{7,634) {5.176)
11,474 -
(797,860) (14,749)
1,138,000 4.271
(373,392) (45,716)
(5,298) (32)
(3,428) (1,654)
755,882 (43,131)
31,068 15,865
57,203 41,338
88,271 57,203




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

The movements in Group llabilities 1in the year as a result of financing actvities are set out within the below
reconciliation

Year ended 31 Cash flows  Accrued Interest Oebt 1ssuance Changes in far Year onded M1
March 2018 costs value March 2019

Liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000 £900 £'000
Lang-term borrowings 799 770 764 607 74,107 (4,452) {17,549) 1,616,482
Tatal Liabihhes frem financing activities 799770 764 BOT 74,107 (4,452) (17,549) 1,616,483

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies

a} Reporting entity
Globhal Media & Entertainment Lirmited (the “Company”)1s an incorporated company limited by shares and domiciled
in the United Kingdom Its registered address 1s 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA

These consolidated financial statements are for the Global Media & Entertainment Limited group (the “Group’) and
they compnse the Company and its subsidianes which are listed in'full n note 32 of the Company financial
staternents

The Group's principal activity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom
The Group financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 July 2019
b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {"IFRS") and the Companies Act 2006

c) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pound sterling (£), which s the Group and the Company's functicnal
and presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to the Group to all penods presented in these financial statements, except in the case of
new accounting standards adopted it the year, detailed below

e) Basis of consolidation

The Group finanaial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes The financial
statements of subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company. using consistent
accounting policies

A subsidiary is an entity controlled, either directly or indirectly, by the Company An investor controls an investee
when 1t 1s exposed, or has nghts, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee and can affect those
returns through its power over the investee The Group has recorded the acguisition 1n Semper Verntas Sar |
{"Exterion”) as a financial asset as at the year end given the restrictions on contral (see note 24)

The results of a subsidiary acquired during the period are included n the Group's results from the effective date on
which control is transferred to the Group All intercompany balances and transactions, including unreahsed profits
arising from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's entfiable net assets at the
date of transition

t) Interests in equity-accounted investments
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investments comprise interests in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not controt or joint controt, over the
financial and operating policies A joint venture 1s an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the
Group has nights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its llabitittes

Interests In associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method They are intially recognised
at cost, which includes transaction costs Subsequent to initial recogniton, the consolidated financial statements
include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investments, untit
the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases

qg) Call and put options
Valuation of call and put options

When the Group enters in to calf or put options to purchase equity, the fair value of the opticn is recorded on the
statement of financial position Any subsequent movement in the fair value of the option 1s taken to profit and loss

Put option reserve

The put option reserve 1s the estmated cost of setting the Groups put options for non-controlling interest
shareholdings
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

h) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet effective

New accounting standards

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASB") became effective during the year ended 31 March 2019 The accounting policies adopted
In the presentation of these financial statements reflect the adoption of the foliowing new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations as of 1 April 2018 The adoption of these standards has not impacted the Group’s
earnings, however has required certain rectassifications in the Group Statement of Financial Position and introduced
additional disclosure requirements

» |FRS 9 Financial Instruments
« |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
Background

Replacing IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and related interpretations, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended In April 2018} establishes new requirements for recognising revenue from contracts with customers The
standard introduces a five-step model which, in summary, requires entities to determine the total transaction price
of the contract and allocate that value to individual performance cbligations within the contract based on therr relative
standalone selling prices Revenue I1s then recognised as each performance obligaton is satisfied, either at a point
in time (generally for the transfer of goods) or over time (for the provision of services)

Transition

IFRS 15 has been adopted using the cumuiative effect method Under this transition method, the full cumulative
impact of adopting the standard 1s recognised as an adjustment to the retained earnings balance at the date of
adoption However, the Group's assessment of the impact of adopting this standard has resulted in no matenal
differences to the Group's retained earnings balance as at ¥ Apnil 2018

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract lability’ to describe ‘accrued revenue’ and ‘deferred revenue’
and the Group has adopted this terminoiogy

Apart from prowiding more extensive disclosures for the Group's revenue transactions and changes in terminology,
the application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the overall financial performance or position of the
Group

The amount of adjustment for each financial statement line item affected by the application of IFRS 15 is lllustrated
below

Group Statement of Financial Position

Without
As adoption
reported of IFRS 15
(IFRS 15) Adjustments (IAS 18)
As at 31 March 2019 £000 £000 £000
Current assets
Contract assets 11,267 {11,267) -
Accrued iIncome - 11,267 11,267
Total current assets 11,267 o 11,267
Current liabilities
Contract habilities 23,891 {23,891) -
Deferred income - 23,891 23,891
Total current liabilities 23,891 - 23891

The transition has neot resulted in any differences to the Group statement of comprehensive income
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies {continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

Background
Under IFRS 9, the treatment for financial habihties remains largely consistent with 1AS 39, with most changes related
to the treatment of financial assets

Transition

Given that the Group does not take part In hedging or complex denvative-based arrangements, the financial assets
of the Group have been largely unimpacted by the transition to IFRS 8 and no matters have been identified with
any matenal mpact as part of the Group-wide review

Standards effective in future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are relevant
to the Company's activites and are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning after 1 January
2019 or later and which the Company has decided not to adopt early

Effective for peniods starting on or after 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases (will become effective for accounting penods starting on or after 1 January 2019)
\FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Feafures with Negative Compensation

Amendments to |IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to |AS 18 Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtaiment or Settlerment

Annual 1mprovements to IFRS Standards IFRS 3 Business Combinations, 'FRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, |1AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Effective for periods starting on or after 1 January 2020
«  Definttion of a Business — Amendments to IFRS 3
s Definttion of Material — Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
+ The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
« IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The Directors considered the impact on the Group's financial information and have considered only IFRS 16 to have
a matenal effect immediately upcon adoption on t Apnl 2019,

IFRS 16 Leases

The new accounting standard, IFRS 16 Leases, endorsed by the EU on 9 November 2017 and effective for the
Group from 1 Apri 2019, provides a comprehensive model for the identfication of lease arrangements and their
treatment for both lessors and lessees, superseding IAS 17 [ pases

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group will make use of the practical expedient avalable on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a
contract is or contains a lease Accordingly, the definttion of a lease 1n accordance with 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 will
continue to apply to those leases entered or modified befcre 1 April 2019

The change in defirition of a lease mamnly relates to the concept of control  IFRS 16 distinguishes between leases
and service contracts on the basis of whether the use of an identified asset 1s controlied by the customer

Impact on lessee accounting

IFRS 16 introduces changes to lease accounting for lessees under operating leases, requinng recogmition of an
asset and a hability to represent the right of use and future lease payments respectively, where previously these
leases were ‘off-balance sheet’ Lease costs (such as rent) will be recognised in the form of depreciation and
interest, rather than as an operating cost, which will also impact the classification of associated cashflows in the
Group Statement of Cash Flows

The Group plans to adopt on a modified retrospective basis with the nght of use asset egual to the lease lability at
fransttion date, less any lease incentives received No prior year restatement will be required

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 imparrment of Assetls,
replacing the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts

For leases with terms of 12 months or less, and for those of low-value assets, the Group will opt to recognise a
lease expense on a straight-line basis as pemitted by IFRS 16
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies (continued)

The Drrectors expect the revisions to have a matenal impact on the presentation of the Company's assets and
liabilities due to the changes Iin lease accounting, pnmarily driven by property leases and advertising sites  Given
the acquisition accounting as disclosed in note 24 (business combinations) 1s provisional within the measurement
pericd defined in IFRS 3, the Directors’ impact assessment over IFRS 16 remains ongoing

An impact assessment has been completed using estimated discount rates based on lease-specific incremental
borrowing rates, with the foliowing changes to reported financial information expected

Income statement

Lease costs of between £45m and £50m would be expected to be partally offset by an increase in depreciation of
£20m to £25m on the rnight-of-use asset Finance costs would be expected to increase by less than £10m,
incorporating the unwind of the discounted lease liabiiity

Statement of financial position

At 31 March 2019, a nght-of-use asset of between £310m and £330m would be recognised as a non-current asset,
along with a lease hability in the same range

Statement of cash flows

The lease payments would be reclassified fram operating activittes to financing activities

Finance leases

The key differences between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance lease 1s the
measurement of the residual value guaraniees provided by the lessee to the lessor IFRS 18 requires that the
Group recognises as part of its lease liability only the amount expected t0 be payable under a residual value
guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by IAS 17

Based on an analysis of the Group's finance leases as at 31 March 2019, the Directors have assessed that this
change will not have an impact on amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements

The Drrectors do not expect a material impact on the Group financial statements as a resuit of the impact of IFRS
16 on lessor accounting

i} Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described n this note, the Directars are required to
make Judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites that are not clear
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and other
relevant factors Actual results may differ from these estmates

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period m which the estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future penods 1f the revision affects both current and future periods

Critical judgements

The foilowing are the cntical judgements, apart from those invalving estimations (which are dealt with separately
below), that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant impact on the amounts recogrised in financial statements

Impairment of goodwiif

At each reporting date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss These assets are reviewed
annually for mpairment or more frequently If there 1s an indication of impairment to ensure that they are not carned
above therr estimated recoverable amounts, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use To
assess If any impairment exists, estimates are made of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposal, alongside a consideration of financial performance against expectation

Useful econormic life of assets

The Group's pelicy for applying useful economic lives and residual values of assets has been determined through
appiying histoncal experience and taking into consideration the nature of assets and their intended use
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Revenue from contracts with customers

The Graup uses estimates when determining the transaction pnce of customer contracts when the contract includes
varable consideration At the reporting date, the Group has used forward locking estimates to determine the most
likely amount of vanable consideration applicable to the contract

Control over the Group’s subsidiaries

The Group must assess whether it controls its subsidiaries when determining whether to consohidate its subsidiaries
Note 24 gutlines the judgements made with regards to the acquisition of Exterion in the year

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA comprises earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and amorhsation and is stated before any
charges or ¢redits refating to non-recurring items inciuding restructuring and sntegration costs such as launch costs

including rebranding, redundancy costs, acquisition-related costs and vacant property provisions This 1s consistent
with prior year

Adjusted EBITDA 1s a non-statutory reporting measure and, as such, 1s not presented in the pnmary financial
statements of the Group, however 1t I1s an Important element of the Group's intermal reporting and iImpacts certain
performance-related remuneration costs, as reported 1n the financial statements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Determination of discount rate — impact on Group borrowings

The Group uses a discount rate based on unobservable inputs (levet 3} to value its borrowings The valuation of
the borrowings 1s sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ inception

The discount rate used by management in determining the value of the borrowings vanes depending on the loans’
significant modification

Latest modification Dis count rate
Shareholder loan notes 31 Decerber 2018 7 9%
Connected party loan 31 December 2018 7 9%
Loan from parent entity 31 December 2018 7 9%

An increase and decrease In the discount rate by 1% would result in the following movements in the valuation of
the Group's borrowings

Increase 1% Decrease 1%

Increase/{decrease) in borrowing (£'000}

Shareholder loan notes (49,016) 52,353
Connected party loan (5,355) 5715
Loan from parent entity (7.374) 7,923

Acquisition accounting

The Group has made significant acquisitions during the year and key judgements exist as part of an assessment of
the fair values of assets acquired, including the identification of intangible assets such as right-of-use assets and
brand vaiues These fair values are sensitive to changes in the discount rate used and given the complexity and
size of the business combinations during the year, the Group has engaged specialists to assist in the determination
of the fair value of material acguired asset classes across the Primesight and Qutdoor Plus groups

Provisions have been made in the opening statements of financial position of the acquired entities as part of the
provisional fair value exercise and significant judgements are involved when assessing the value and nature of
potential future costs under IAS 37 Any prowisions included as part of management's assessments of the opening
statements of financial position impact the value of recognised goodwill, as discussed below The Group's property
provisions have materially increased as a resuit of management and external due diligence procedures performed
as part of the acquisition accounting

Determination of discount rate — impact on impairment assessments

The Group uses its weighted average cost of capital to discount expected future cashflows across its operating
segments The value in use of each CGU, and therefore the headroom above carrying value, is sensitive to changes
1n this discount rate

30




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies {continued)

Management have performed sensitivity analysis and have determined that an increase of 1 4% in the discount rate
would result in £nil headroom across the Qutdoor division  There 1$ significant headroom In the Radio dwvision and
the value in use 18 not materially sensitive to changes in the discount rate appled to future cash flows

j) Going concern

At 31 March 2019 the Group had net liabilities of £368 6m (2018 £331 7m) The Directors confirm that, after making
enguines, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adeguate resources, and support of the
holders of the related party loans, to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The related party
loans are principally held with the ultimate owners of the Group

The Group has prepared forecasts of expected future cash flows for the three years ending 31 March 2022 (“the
forecasts”) The Board considers the forecasts have been prepared on a prudent basis taking into account current
consensus forecasts of the radio and out-of-home advertising markets However, the Group has also prepared a
worse than expected downside scenarnio Even under this sensitised scenario, the forecasts indicate that the Group
can continue to trade for the foreseeable future and operate within s facility and the associated financial covenants

The Directors consider 1t appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis The Directors’
forecasts show sufficient cash will be generated from the Group's operations to be able to repay the bank loan and
other obligations as they fall due

k) Segment reporting

A segment 1s a compaonent of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's board of Directors to
make decisions about resources to be-allocated to a segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information 1s avallable {see note 2)

)  Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into pound stering (£), the Group’s functional currency, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured Forexgn
currency translation gatns and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencres are recognised in the
income Statement Foreign currency translation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance income or finance expense All other foreign
currency translation gains and losses are presented In the Income Statement within direct costs and administrative
expenses

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including farr value adjustments ansing on consolidation, are
translated to the Group’s functional currency at foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the reporting date
Goodwill remains translated at the historic exchange rate

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the penod, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactons Exchange differences
arising from the translation of foreign operations are reported in other comprehensive income

m) Investments

Investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance Sheet) at cost less amounts written-off,
representing impairment 1n value Impairment charges are recorded If events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable The Group has recorded its interest in Exterton as an investment
at fair value as at 31 March 2019, given the restriction on control descnbed 1n note 24

n) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Cost
includes the onginal purchase price of the assets and costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use
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Property, plant and equipment i1s depreciated at rates calcuiated to write off the cost less residual value of each
asset over its useful economic life on a straight-line basis over the following penods

Freehold property 25 to 50 years
Capitalised leasehold costs Qver the term of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and technical equipment 3to 10 years

Festival assets 3to 10 years

Advertising panels 7 510 20 years
Transmitters 10 years

Gains and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds received and the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognised in profit or loss

impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment reviews of property, plant and equipment are undertaken whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. If the fair value of an asset 1s estimated to be less than s
carrying amount, the carrying amount 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where an mpairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount s increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the increased amount does
rot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years Any mparrment iosses or reversals are recognised i/mmediately in the income statement

o) Intangible assets

Soffware costs
Purchased software costs are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Costs
associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred

Software development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controiled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following cntena are met

- it1s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it wall be available for use,

- management intends to complete the software product and use cor sell it,

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product,

- 1t can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits,

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are avallable, and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be rehiably measured

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over therr estmated useful lives of three
years. Acguired domain names are amortised over seven years

Radio licences

Radio licences are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses Radio
licences are amortised over the period of the ficence on a straight-line basis

Festival lcences

Festiva! licences are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses
Festival licences are amortised aver the period of the licence on a straight-ine basis

Festival brands

The Group's festival brands are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives of seven years
Impairment of intangible assels (excluding goadwill)

Imparment reviews are undertaken whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate therr carrying value may
not be recoverable If the fair value of an intangible asset 1s estmated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to Its recoverable amount Where an imparment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount 1s Increased to the revised estimate, but restrcted so that the increased amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impaiment loss been recognised In prior years Any
impairment losses or reversals are recognised iImmediately in the Income Statement
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p) Goodwill

Business combinaticns are accounted for using the acquisition method The costs of an acquisition 1s measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
nan-contreiling interest In the acquiree Acquisition costs mcurred are expensed and included in administrative
expenses

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group will be recogrused at fair value at the acquisiton date
Subsequent changes to the fair value will be recogrised either within the Income Statement or in other
comprehensive Income

Goodwill on acquisition I1s initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair vaiue of the 1dentifiable assets, habilihes and contingent habiities ldentifiable
intangible assets, meebng either the confractuzl-legal or separabllity criterion are recognised separately from
goodwill Following imhial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumuiated impairment losses

Goodwill in respect of an acquired subsidiary 1s recognised as an intangible asset Goodwill In respect of an acquired
associate or joint venture 1s included within investments accounted for using the equity method

Goodwill 1s reviewed for mpairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired

Where the farr value of the interest acquired in an entity’s assets, habilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
consigeration paid, the excess 1s recognised immediately as a gain in the Income Statement

As atthe acquisition date, any goodwil! acguired 1s allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the combination’s synergies Imparment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit, to which the goodwill relates Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1s less
than the carrying amount, an impaiment loss is recognised Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating urnit
and part of the operation within that unit 1s disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of i1s
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

Goodwill disposed of In this circumstance s measured on the basts of the relative values of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained
q) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are recognised inthally at fair value, which 15 deemed to be the transaction price
Subsequently, trade and other recelvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any provision for impairment

r} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts compnse cash balances and money market deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integrai part of the Group’'s cash management are included as a component of ¢cash and
cash equivalents for the Statement of Cash Flows

s) Share capital
'Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Share prermum

The share premium account represents the amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, iess
any costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares

Reserves

The retained deficit represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised n the Income Statement and
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Dwidends

Dividends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a habikty in the Group's financial statements in the penod in
which they are declared In the case of interm dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are paid
and in the case of final dividends these are declared when authorised by the shareholders

33



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)
t) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or sernces that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost Trade payables are classified as current habiities if payment 1s due within one year or less,
otherwise they are presented as non-current liabiities

u) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised intially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently
carned at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recagnised in the income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees pad on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
1s probable that sorne or all of the facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee 15 deferred until the draw-down
occurs To the extent there s no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down, the
fee 15 capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates

v) Finance income and expense
Finance income camprises interest received on cash batances

Finance expense comprises Interest payable on barrowings, amorhisation and write off of debt issuance costs and
the unwinding of the discount on non-current provisions

interest is recognised n profit or foss as 1t accrues, using the effective interest rate Interest payabile on borrowings
includes a charge in respect of attnibutable transaction costs, which are recognised in profit or loss over the penod
of the barrowings on an effective interest basis

w) Financial instruments

A financial instrument 18 initially recognised at fair vaiue on the Statement of Financial Position (or Baiance Sheet)
when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument A financial instrument is derecognised
when the contractuat nghts to the cash flows expire or substantively all nsks and rewards of ownership are
transferred

The Group's financial assets are classified in accordance with IFRS 8 and subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value, depending on classification

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost

- the financial asset 1s held within a business model whose objective I1s to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of pnncipal and Interest on the principal amount cutstanding

Impairment of financial assetls

The Group recogrises a provision for expected credit losses on financial assats The amount of expected credit
losses s updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
instrument

In assessing whether the credit nsk has increased significantly, the Group considers both quantitative and guahtative
irformation that s both reasonable and supportable, including historical expenence and forward-looking information
The Group assumes that the credit nsk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since nhial
recognition If the financial instrument 1s determied to have low credit nsk at the reporiing date

For ai! financial assets, the expected credit loss 1s estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows

that are due to the Group and the cash flows the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate

Financial habilities

Subsequent to initial recognition, ail financial iiabilities are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
methed, or at fairr vaiue through profit and loss (FVTPL)
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Financial habiities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial hability 1s (1) contingent consideration of an acquirer
In a business combination, (1) held for trading or (1} it 1s designated as FVTPL

Financial habilites at FVTPL are measured at fair value with any gains or losses ansing on changes in fair vaiue
recognised in profit or |0ss (except for those attnbutable to changes in the credit nsk of the liability, which 1s instead
recorded in other comprehensive income) Amounts recogrised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, but are instead transferred to retained earnings upon derecogrition of the
financial liabiity

Financal liabitties measured subsequently at amortised cosf
All other financial labilites are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Derscognition of financial habiities

The Group derecognises financial habiiities when, and only when, the Group's obligattons are discharged, cancelled
or have expired The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabiity derecogrused and the
consideration paid and payable s recognised in profit or loss

x) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the penod comprses current and deferred tax Tax I1s recognised in the Income Statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised m other comprehensive income or directly in equity In this
case the tax s also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly In equity, respectively

The current Income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax iaws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date Management penodically evaiuates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situatrons in which
applicable tax regutation |15 subject to interpretation It establishes prowvisions where approprate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid {o the tax authorities

Deferred iIncome tax 1s recoghised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilites
and their carrying amounis in the Statement of Financial Posittion However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recogrised If they anse from the initial recognition of goodwill Deferred income tax 1s not accounted for If it arnses
from initial recognition of an asset or liabiity 1n a transaction other than a business compination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Posttion date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s
settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the exient that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be
avallable against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred Income tax liabilties are provided on taxable temporary differences ansing from investments in
subsidianes, except for deferred income tax llabilities where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
1s cantrolled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductble temporary differences arsing from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it 1s probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there 1s
sufficient taxable profit avallable against which the temporary difference can be utlised Deferred income tax assets
and liabilhes are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets against current tax
habilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authorty on either the same taxable entity or different taxabie entities where there 1s an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis

y) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 1s provided A liability 1s recognised for the

amount expected to be paid If the Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Termunation benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the narmal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redungancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises

termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructunng that 1s within the scope of IAS 37
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Prowisicns, contingent habilihies and contingent assets (“IAS 37") and involves the payment of termination benefits
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer Benefits falfing due more than one year after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present value

Defined contributian pension scheme

The Group operates employee stakehoider retirement and death benefit schemes Both employees and employers
are required to make contributions with the employers’ contributtons for each employee determined by the level of
contnbution made by the employee and the employee’s length of service within the Group or subsidiary company

The employer's contributions are charged to profit and ioss in the year in which the contributions are due

Nefinad henefit pensian schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes which require contnbutions to be made to separately
admimistered funds The cost of providing benefits under the plans are determined using independent actuarial
valuaticns These are based on the projected unit credit method and are recognised in accordance with the advice
of a qualified actuary Past service costs resulting from enhanced benefits are recogrised on a straight-hne basis
over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have vested

Re-measurement gains and Icsseas, and taxation thereon, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pernods Re-measurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net nterest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrichions

Actuarnal gains and losses may result from differences between the actuarial assumpbons underlying the plan
habilites and actual expenence during the year or changes in the assumphons used in the valuation of the plan
irabilities

The aggregate defined benefit lability or asset recognised in the Statement of Financial Posibon comprises the
present value of the benefit obiigation using a discount rate based an appropnate fugh quality corporate bonds, at
the reporting date, minus any past service costs not yet recognised, munus the fair value of the plan assets, if any,
at the reporting date VWhere the plans are in surplus, the asset recognised s limited to the amount which the Group
expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction in future contributions

z) Share-based payments

The Group has a long-term incentive share scheme under which it makes equity-settled share-based payments to
ehigible employees The cost of equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant
and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the employees become
fully entitled to the reward.

Far value 1 estmated using appropnate models for the awards under consideration In valuing equity settled
transactions, no account s taken of any vesting conditions, other than the performance conditions hinked to the price
of the shares of the Company {rnarket conditions) Any other conditions which are required to be met in order for
an empiloyee to become fully entitied to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions These are also taken
Into account In determining the grant date fair value

No expense i1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transachons where vesting
Is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condiion is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service condiions are
satisfied

At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense 15 calculated, representing the extent to which the
vesting penod has expired and management's best estimate of the number of the achievement or otherwise of non-
market vesting conditions and of the number of equity instruments that witl ultimately vest or, in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting The movement in cumutative expense since the
previous reporting date 1s recognised m the Income Statement, with a corresponding entry In equity

Where the terms of an equily-settled award are modified or a new award 13 designated as replacing a cancelled or
settled award, the cost based on the onginal award terms continues to be recognised over the onginal vesting
penod In addition, an expense Is recognised over the remainder of the new vesting pertod for the incremental fair
value of the maodification, based on the difference befween the fair value of onginal award and the fair value of the
modified award, both as measured at the date of modification Nec reduction 15 recognised If this difference 1s
negative.

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled (where non-vesting canditions within the contro! of either the entity or
the employee are not met), it 1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recagnised for the award 1s expensed immediately Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
cancellation or settlement date 1s deducted from equity, with any excess over fair value being treated as an expense
in the Income Siatement.
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aa) Provisions
Provisions for onerous leases, restructunng costs, legal claims and other future costs are recognised when

- the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
- it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
- the amount has been reliably estimated

Prowvisions are not recognised for future operating losses Provisions are measured at the present value of the costs
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation

Restructuning provisions are recognised only when the Group has developed a detaled formal plan for the
restructuning and has raised a valid expectation in those affected The measurement of such a provision includes
only the direct expenditures ansing from the restructuring, not those associated with the ongoing activities of the
entity

bb) Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition Is based on the satisfaction of performance obligations, and an assessment of when control
15 transferred to the customer The transaction price 1s allocated to these identified perfermance obligations,
including an estimate of any varnable consideration and stated net of any sales taxes, agency commissions and
trade discounts

Customer contracts vary across the Group and contain a vanety of performance obligations Under IFRS 15, the
Group must evaluate whether the goods or services are transferred over time or at a point \n time for each
performance obligation

A summary of how the key classes of revenue are recognised i1s provided betow

Radio adverhsing Poimnt in time, at date of broadcast

Sponsorship QOver the term of the contract

Internet revenue Over the term of the contract

Transmission fees Over the term of the contract

Production of adverts Point in time, on date of release to clients
Enterprise revenue Point in time, on agreed settlement with alt parties
Festival ticket revenue Paoint in time, on the day of the festival

Festival non-ticket sales Point in time, at the point of sale

QOut-of-home media revenue Qver the term of the contract

Qut-of-home production revenue Point in tme, when prowided for use

For goods and services that are transferred over time, revenue 1s recognised based on the number of days that
have transpired at the reporting date

Customer contracts are generally less than one year in duration, as are al! standard payment terms, and therefore
no significant financing components exist within the Group’s operations

The transaction price s determined by the agreed terms of the contract In some instances, contracts will comprise
an element of vanable consideration, often in the form of volume-based rebates In these instances, the total
transaction price of the contract 1s reduced by the estimated vanable consideration

The Group applies the practical expedient to expense all iIncremental costs 1n obtaining new contracts when incurred
on the condition that the contract is less than one year in duration
Revenue on barter transactions 1s recognised only when the services being exchanged are of a similar nature

cc) Leases

The Group 15 both a lessor and lessee of property, plant and equipment  Any sub-let income recerved 1n the year
IS immaterial
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dd) Fair value measurement

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclasures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and nen-financial assets and habilihes Set out below is an analysis of the valuation method of the Group's finanaal
nstruments

The different levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows.

«level 1 guoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identicat assets or habilties

« Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included wathin levet 1 that are observable, for the asset
or liability, either directly {| @ as prices) or indirectly (1e denved from prices)

«Level 3 inputs for the asset or habiity that are not based on observable market data

{unobservable (hputs)
The Group has no assets or llabihties where fair values have been determined for measurement purposes
Borrowings (level 3)

Borrowings, as disclosed in note 16 and note 20, are calculated as the present vaiue of the estmated future cash
flows based on the term and maturty of the ican and using estimated market interest rate available to the Group for
similar nstruments at the loans’ inception The Group uses a discount rate based on unobservable Inputs (level 3)
to value 1ts other borrowings (shareholder loan notes, connected party ioan and Ioan from parent entity) The
valuation of the borrowings Is sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ inception The discount rate 15
reassessed when new off-market loans are introduced or existing cther borrowings are significantly modified

ee) Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Group enters inte financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies withun
the Group, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such |n this respect,
the Group treats the guarantee contact as a contingent habiity until as such ime as it becomes probable that the
Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

2. Operating segments

The Group's chief operating decision maker has been identfied as the Board of Directors The Board of Directors
review the Group's internal reporting monthly in order to assess performance and allocate resources

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports used by the Board The Board mainly
assesses performance based on adjusted EBITDA

The Group has three reportable segments being commercial radio broadcasting, Including associated operations In
the United Kingdom, music festivals and out-of-home advertising {Outdoor)

Most of the Group's trading 1s carried out and recognised within the United Kingdom, though the Group also operates
across North America and Europe

All transactions hetween segments are completed on an am's length basis

The Group is not reliant on any major customers and no single customer provides more than 10% of Group revenue
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Operating segments (continued)

i PTIT) {aLr'az! ize'ol) ez 1962 9} 668 60 BELET LONERFY AUDIEG (S0 1 E40L ¢
08z L BZ'y - 18 Tzt BV L 204 ¥PLIO0 JAu SBA}SsaUI P DI38 ARNDE JO 1SS0 | 0K D aleys
10zz 65) toog'ea} - {ze's} 4 (] 1Z22¢BG Izas'ss) A adxa @oueuy 1an
Tos0cE zre'Ty laip'sz) . T esee e e oose 15501 o bune sadg
18 0g) (asg'v) {8Ly'sz) (83204} (6zo o Zezon IGRZ $11 1996'42) sasuadv2 A4i0
o oL - e - 3ui's EvR L S Twy T 219t 96 siysor ¥0.183 patstioy
(692 941} {+ag'sgL) - feez's) (p8E b1 (250'9) (G568 7213 [[ErETH] &asumcen fi 13Fi8d0
662 0BT saLcit - - I ™ T TS T T oTorew Z8E B8 T oveweE o ssain
0Lz b {9g7'981) - Iz20'9t) Lznaw Gzzo9 1561 1 [1131) s1507 43210
oo BeE ) av0'08Y c - T wozs vav 8y 19568 55 B2 orEIE - SIS I, TR Wl AE R aN
600 8BE wo'osr - 18028 yaw g5 185'88 S¥G 877 £0F'59L aruana (B0 |
0003 000.3 0003 0003 2003 (L1 05 3 0003 o3 000.¥
Loz sior 2102 6102 (184 6102 10z 6102 8Lz 8502

Uoiew LEpepua s=a)  UDIEW LT PRPUBIERA  UDIPW LCPSPUAIRAL  UDJEW LE PRPUS JERA

el

dnaig

Y2UEW LF PRPUB BB, USIEW LT PRPUS JCOA

1amng

UQIBY LE PEPU3 IBBA YOI LE PRRBLE IER)

sIEARSa o1SnW

yatep L papus ray

aipey

YDIEW LE RAPUA 1E8)

38



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
3. Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Year ended 31

March 2019

£'000

Amertisation of intangible assets 25,053
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11,543
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 32

Operating lease rentals

- tand and builldings 42,610

- moter vehicles and other leases 1,331
Lease income received {447)

Year ended 31
March 2018

£0060

19,412
4,445
296

6675
1037
(66)

Auditor's remuneration for audit and non-audit services during the year was

Year ended 31

March 2019
£'000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the 377
Company's annual financial statements
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates it respect of
Other services pursuant to legislabon 13
Taxation compliance services 459
Al taxation advisory services not included above -
Corporate finance services 2,710
Pension services -
Share aption plan services 53

IT services -

Year ended 31
March 2018

£'000

175

13

192
264
25
53
19

As the Group's Interest in Exterion ts recognised as an investment as at 31 March 2019, audit and non-audit fees
payable to the Group's auditor have not been included in the above, as it did not meet the definition of an affiliate

and was under hold-separate.

4. Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below I1s the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£000 £000
Radio revenue 358,403 329,545
Festivals revenue 69,561 58,464
Qutdoor revenue 52,081 -
480,045 386,009

40



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
4, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Timing of reverue recogmtion.
Year ended 31  Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£000 £000

Goods and services transferred at a point in time 418,725 377,788
Goods and services transferred over time 61,320 10,221
480,045 388,009

Goods and services transferred over time includes commission revenue, sponsorships, transmission fees and
outdoor media revenue All octher revenue for the group relates to goods and services that are transferred at a point
in tme

b) Contract balances
As at 31
March 2019
£000
Contract assets 11,267
Contract habilities 23,871

The timing of invoicing, cash cellection and revenue recognition results in trade recelvables contracts assets and
contract labilites in the Group's statement of financiaf position Contract assets and liabilities are included in trade
recelvables and trade payables balances within the Statement of Financial Position

As at the reporting date, any goods or services that have been transferred to customers for which consideration has
not yet been received (or invoiced for) are recognised as a contract asset Any consideration that has been received
(or invoiced for) in relation to goods or services that have not been transferred to the customer 1s recognised as a
contract liability

Contract asset balances, where applicable, are stated net of provisions for imparrment All contract balances relate
to performance obligations expected to be settlied within a year, and are classified as current in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Revenue recognised i the current penod that was included in the contract lrability balance at the beginning of the
period was £23 7m There was no revenue recagnised in the period from performance obhgations satisfied (or
partially satisfied) in previous periods

The Group apphes the practical expedient provided by the standard not to disclose information about unsatisfied
performance obligations on the basis that all such performance obligatons are part of contracts that have an
expected duration of less than one year

5. Employees
The average number of people employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year was as follows

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
Number Number
Sales 719 664
Programming 410 384
Administration 354 275
1,483 1,323

All members of staff are contractually employed by subsidiary comparnies within the Group and not under direct
employment by Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the Company)
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5. Employees {continued)

The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees were as follows

Wages and salares

Sacial security costs

Contnbutions to defined benefit pension schemes
Contnbutions to defined contribution pension schemes

6. Directors

The remuneration costs of the Group’s Directors were

Remuneration

The remuneration of the tughest paid Girector was

Aggregate emoluments

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 E£'00D
88,045 75653
9,947 8,603
2,368 142
2,657 1.892
103,017 86,290

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£000 £000
7,345 7.181
7,345 7.181

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£000 £:000
2,522 2,456
2,522 2,458

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the qualifying services of the Directors of the Group

IAS 24 Related party transactions (“|AS 24") requires the Group to disclose all transactions and outstanding
balances with the Group's key management personrel AS 24 defines key management personnel as those
persaons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and cantrelling the activities of the entity, directly

or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity

The key management personnel who are responsible for planning, directing and controliing the actvties of the

Group and the Company are the Group's Directors

Duning the pnor year, a number of Directors were granted loans in refation to an equity-settied share-based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the settlement of the scheme The loan balances outstanding

are

L.oans to directors in relation to cash-settled share based
payment arrangement

No interest has been charged on the toans made to directors (2018 £rul)

7. Finance income

Bank interest receivable
Interest on pension scheme assets
Movement in fair value adjustments on borrowings
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Yoar ended 31

March 2019
£'000

142

Year ended 31
March 2018

£'000

142

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000

28 23

1,124 1,188
17,550 -
18,702 1,211
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8. Finance expense

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest payable on other leans

Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs

Movement In fair value adjustments on borrowings
interest on pension scheme habiities

9. Income tax charge

Analysis of tax charge in the year

Current tax expense
UK corporatian tax on the (loss) / profit for the year
Adjustments in respect of priar years

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax charge / {credit)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments 'n respect of prior years

Total deferred tax charge / (credit)

income tax charge

{b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

{Loss) / profit before tax

{Loss) / profit before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 19%

(2018 19%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Interest expense not deductible for tax purposes
Recognitron of deferred tax on temporary differences
Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Special factors affecting joint-ventures and associates
UK Dividend income from associates

Effects of changes in tax rates

Adjustments (in respect of prior years

Overseas rates vs UK rates

Income tax charge
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Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000

5,167 3,230
74,107 55,290

845 584

- 179

1,583 1,148
81,702 60,431

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £000
11,569 9.902

94 (344)

11,663 9,558
1,651 (2,664)

46 (1.442)

1,697 (4,106)
13,360 5,452

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000
{19,377) 25136
{3,682) 4,776
6,195 609
533 -
9,918 2139
592 -
(72) (280}
(717) M
314 (31)
139 (1,785)
140 25
13,360 5,452
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9. Income tax charge (continued)

(¢} Factors that may affect future tax charge

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 Apnl 2017 Accordingly,

the effective rate of 19% has been used In the computation of current tax

The 2016 Finance Act includes legislation to reduce the main rate of cerporation tax from 19% to 17% from 1 Apni
2020. The reduction in tax rates was substantively enacted on 15 September 2016.

The tax rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and iabiities recorded in these financial statements are the

tax rates in the pencd in which we expect the deferred tax assets or liabilies to crystallise

10. intangible assets
Right-of.use Brands and
Software costs t L trad rks Goodwall Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
AL 1 Agnil 2018 31,641 20,861 75860 645 809 774471
Acquisitions - 179.936 1179 9.773 151617 342,505
Additions 7,603 23 8 7,634
Disposals (7.915) - (7.915)
At 31 Mareh 2019 31,329 179,938 22,063 85 641 797 426 1,116,395
Amortisation and mpairment
At 1 Apnl 2018 18,882 5,266 16,000 315877 357,125
Charge far the year 6.358 4 481 3471 11,048 25,058
Oisposals (7.915) - - - - (7,915}
Impairment - - 16,456 4,963 25419
AL 31 March 2019 17,325 4.481 9,437 43,504 324,940 398,887
Net bock value
At 31 March 2019 14,004 175,455 12,626 42,137 472,486 716,707
Right-of-use Brands and
Software costs assets Licanses trademarks Goodwll Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000
Cest
At 1 Apnl 20617 26,465 13,032 75.860 540,295 755,652
Arrpusifinng - - TR7G 5514 13,343
Additions s - S S A -
At 31 March 2018 31,841 - 20,861 75,860 645 809 774,171
Amortisation and impawrment
At 1 Apni 2017 12,526 - 4047 5163 315977 337,713
Charge for the year . ..&36 - 2,219 . tos3r - 19412
Al 31 March 2018 18.882 . - 6,266 16,000 315,977 357,125
Net boak value . _
AL 1 Apnl 2017 13,939 8,985 70,697 324,318 417,939
Al 31 March 2018 12,759 14,595 "59.860 329,832 " 417,046

During the year the Group acquired festival brands with a value of £9 8m (2018 £rul) At 31 March 2019 the carrying
value of the festival brands was £58 6m and they had remasining useful economic lives of between four and seven
years During the pnor year, the Group acquired a festival hcence with a value of £2.0m and a useful Iife of two

years,

All other acquisitions of intangible assets during the year were in relaton to the new Qutdoor division (see note 24

- Business Combinations)

During the year, the Group capitalised £6 9m (2018 £4 7m) of software development costs
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10. Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill

The Group compietes an impairment review of goodwill annually In accordance with IAS 36 Impaiment of assets
(“"IAS 36°) the Group has completed a review of its operations and determined that the Group has three cash-
generating units (“CGU") Only the goodwill allocated to the Radio and to the Festivals components have been
tested for impairment dunng the year, given that the values attributed to the acquired assets and recognised goodwill
are provisional as at the year end, though management have performed an inihal assessment and have not
identified indicators of impairment within the Outdoor division

The Group estimates value In use by projecting pre-tax cash fiows for the next five years together with a terminal
vaiue using a tong-term growth rate and compares this to the fair value less costs to sell in the assessment of the
recoverable amount The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGUs tested for
impairment are forecast revenue and EBITDA

Radio CGU goodwill impairment review

The five-year plans used in the iImpairment models are based on management’s expenence and future expectations
of performance

The key assumptions used are a pre-tax discount rate of 8 2% (2018 7 8%), a short to medium term growth rate of
3% (2018 3%), and a long-term growth rate of 3% (2018 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used I1s dernved from a weighted average cost of capital {"WACC") calculation for the
Group and benchmarked against similar organisations operating within the sector

The total recoverable amount in respect of goodwill, as assessed by management using the above assumptions, 1s
greater that the carrying amount and therefore no impairment charge has been booked

Management consider that it 1s not reasonably pessibie for the assumptions to change so significantly as to eliminate
the excess

Festivals CGU goodwill impairment review

The recoverable amount of the goodwll allocated to the Festivals CGU has been determined as lower than the
carrying value

The assessment of fair value less costs to sell has been determined using management's best estmates of a market
value, informed by sales values close to the year-end as an approximation of fair value, representing measurements
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy This information has aiso informed the value in use calculation performed
by management

In accordance with 1AS 36 Impatrment of assets {"IAS 36") the Group has completed a review of its operations and
has dentified performance-related indicators of mparrment In relation to the Festivals division, prompting an
impairment assessment over the carrying value of festival intangible assets, mainiy brands

As part of the assessment, management determined that the carrying values of certain brands as at the year-end
were higher than the recoverable amount Analysis of the component's performance over the past twelve months
was used in this assessment, along with expectations of future trading and wider market conditions  Following the
assessment, an impairment charge of £25 4m has been recognised in profit and loss, £9 Om relating to goodwill
and £16 4m relating to brands

Goodwill allocated to each component 15 as follows

Goodwill NBV (£'m)

Component 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Radio 3231 3220
Festivals - 78
Outdoor 149 3 -
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 Apnil 2018
Additions
Acquisitions
Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Depreciation

At 1 Aprii 2018
Charge for the year
hsposals

At 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2019

Cost

Al 1 Aprit 2017
Additions
Acquisttions
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net book value
Al 1 April 2017

At 31 March 2018

Transmitters,
fixtures and

Land and technical Leasehoid

buildings equipment Festival assets improvements Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,309 13,287 1,204 245 34,045
1.320 16,330 1.052 - 18,702

- 62,763 2 - 52,765
{628) (3,289) - - (3,917)
20,001 89,091 2,258 245 111,595
3,251 3,879 237 - 7.367
1,487 9,085 726 245 11,543
(628) (3,257) - - {3,885)
4110 9707 963 245 15,025
15,891 79,384 1,295 - 96,570

Transmitters,
fixtures and
Land and technical Leasehoid

buildings equipment Festival assets improvements Total
£'000 £°000 £000 £°000 £'000
18,621 8,784 608 245 28,258
877 4,526 849 - 6,252

- 35 15 - 50

{189) {58) _(268) - {515)
19,309 13,287 1,204 245 34,045
1,921 1,205 15 - 3,141
1,512 2,711 222 - 4,445
(182) {37) - - (219)
3,251 3,879 237 - 7.367
16,700 7,579 593 245 25117
16,058 9,408 967 245 26678
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12. Equity accounted investments

Cost

At 1 Apni 2018

Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Dividends received from equity accounted mvestments
At 31 March 2019

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2017

Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Dividends received from equity accounted investments
At 31 March 2018

The Group’s Investments 1n associates are

Investments in Investments in
joint ventures associates Total
£000 £°000 £'000
606 546 1152
740 541 1281
(700) (269) (969)
646 818 1,464
investments in Investments in
joint ventures associates Total
1,220 577 1.797
736 524 1.260
{1,350) (555) {1,905)
808 546 1,152

% of ordinary share capital

Name Country ownership
EG Digital Limited UK 430
The Digital Radio Group (London) Limited UK 46 5
Lost Ventures Limited UK 300
The Group’s Investmenis in joint ventures are
o . .
Name Country % of crdr:“ri;t;lai;e capital
CE Digital Limited UK 500
InLink Limited UK 50 0

The principal actvity of CE Digital 1s that of managing multiplexes and I1s considered strategic to the Group's
activites InLink Limited 1s a joint venture between Primesight Limitedand Intersechion and its prnincipal activity 1s
the provision of advertising combined with Wi-F: to enhance multi-screen communication

The registered addresses of the Group's joint ventures and associates are

Company

Registered Address

EG Digital Limited

The Digital Radio Group (London) Limited
Lost Ventures Limited

CE Digitai L.imited

inLink Limited
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13. Investments

Cost Fair value Total
£000 £°000 £7000
Cost
At 1 Aprd 2018 65088 - 6 088
Additions - 428,057 428,057
Disposals (5.600) - (5,600)
At 31 March 2019 488 428,057 :128‘545
Provision for impairment
At 1 Apnl 2018 308 - 308
At 37 March 2018 308 - 308
Net hook value
At 31 March 2019 180 428,057 428,237
Cost Fair value Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 1 April 2017 6,088 - 65.088
At 31 March 2018 6.088 - 6.088
Provigion for impairment
At 1 April 2017 308 - 308
At 31 March 2018 308 - 308
Net book vaiue
At 31 March 2018 5,780 - 5780

During the year the Group acquired 100% of the share capital in Semper Veritas Holdings S ar | and its subsidianes
("Exterion”) On 14 November 2018, the CMA served an initial enforcement order (}EQ) under section 72(2) of the
Enterprise Act 2002 in relation to the completed acquisition, placing signsficant restrictions on Global's management
of the Exterion business As a result the Extenon group 1s not consolidated and 1s held as an investment as at 31
March 2019 at fair value, as assessed under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 13

Post year-end, the Group has consolidated the results of the Exterion group from the date at which control was
obtamed, and as such, will not recogmise its interest as an equity accounted investment In the Group staternent of
fitanivial posilivn beyuird tis dale (see nule 28)

The Group soid its entire Investment in AdsWizz Incin June 2018 for a combination of cash and share consideration,
recognising a gain on sale of £5 9m

Detalls of the Group's investments are as follows
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13. Investments (continued)

Name Country ownership
Semper Vertas Holdings S ar | Lux 100
Doubleplay | Limited UK 100
Doubleplay Il Limited UK 100
Doubleplay Il Limited UK 100
Extenon Media Holdings Limited UK 100
Extericn Limited UK 160
Extencn Group Holdings Lirmited KY 100
Exterion Media Metro Services (UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Leasing (BDA) Limited BDA 100
Exterion Media {UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Leasing (UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Partner (BDA) GP BDA 100
Exterion Holdings (UK) Ltd UK 100
Exterion Holdings | (Nethertands) B Vv NL 100
Exterion Media (Netherlands) B V NL 100
Extenon Holdings |1 (Netherlands} B Vv NL 100
Exterion Media (ltaty) St L IT 100
Exterion Holdings (BV1) Limifed BVI 100
Exterion Holdings (HK) Limited HK 100
Exterion Media (Ireland) Limited IE 100
Exterion Holdings (France) SAS FR 100
Exterion Media (France) SA FR 100
Exierion Media Spain, S A U ES 100

The registered address of these investments 1s 7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobald's Road, Londen, England,

WC1X 8NL, with the exception of the following entities

Company

Registered Address

Semper Ventas Holdings S ar
Extenon Group Holdings Limited

Exterion Leasing (BDA} Limiied
Exterion Partner {(BDA) GF

Exterion Holdings t (Netherlands) B V
Exterion Media (Netherlands) B v
Exterion Holdings (1 {Netherlands) B v
Exterion Media (ltaly) Sr L

Exterion Holdings (BVI) Limited

Exterion Hoidings (HK} Limited
Exterion Media {ireland) Limited
Extenon Holdings (France) SAS
Exterion Media (France) SA
Exterion Media Spain, S A

8-10, Avenue de Ja Gare, L1610 Luxembourg

Floor 4 Willow House Cricket Square, PO BOX 268, Grand Cayman. K1
1104, Cayman Islands

Cumberland House 1 Victona Street, 9th Floor, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda
Cumberland House 1 Victenia Street, 9th Floor, Hamilton, Hm11, Bermuda
Karspeidreef 8 Amsterdam Z O, 1101 CJ Netherlands

Karspeidreef 8 Amsterdam Z O , 1101 CJ Netherlands

Karspeidreef 8 Amsterdam Z O, 1101 CJ Netherlands

Vicolo cieco S Giacometto, 2 — Verona, Italy

2/F Palm Grove House, P O Box 3340, Road Tawn, Tortola, British Virgin
Islands

Level 54, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong

25-28 Adelarde Road, Dublin 2002 RY938

3 Espl du Foncet, 92130 Issy-les-Moulneaux, France

3 Espl du Foncet, 82130 Issy-les-Moullneaux, France

Calle Valie de la Fuenfria, 3, 28034 Madnd. Spawn
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14. Trade and other receivables
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£000 £'000
Gross trade receivables 85,677 55,247
Less provision for imparrment (358) (418)
85,319 54,829
Other debtors ‘ 5,544 3.281
Prepayments 22,860 17,943
Accrued iIncome - 8,051
Contract assets 11,267 -
124,990 84,104

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 418 117
Movement in provision (60) 301
Batance at the end of the year 358 418

The above table details the movements in the provision for the impairment of trade receivables

The carrying value of trade and other receivables i1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
receivables The Group measures the prowision far impatrrment at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
(ECL), estmated with reference to past default experience as well as the debtor's current financial position

There has been no change in significant assumptions made during the current reporting perod and the provision
remains immaterial to the Group's trade recevable balances

The Group writes off a trade receivable where there 1s information indicating that the debtor 1s 1n severe financia!
difficulty and there 1s no realistic prospect of recovery

There are no matenal overdue trade receivables that have not been provided against and there is no contractual
balance outstanding on financial assets written off durning the year The Group constiders its exposure to credit nisk
as immaterial given the majonty of trade recevables are insured
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15. Trade and other payables

Current

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £:000

Trade payables 27,812 15,150
Other taxes and social secunty costs 9,882 13,481
Ciher creditors 13,249 8,756
Accruals 85,681 44,285
Deferred income - 23,651

Centract habilities 23,81 -
160,475 105,323

Non-current

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £'000

Accruals - 16,332
- 16,332

The carrying value of trade and other payables I1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
payables All of the Group's trade an¢ other payables are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method

16. Borrowings

Current 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts 35,000 23,303
Accrued interest 29,134 14,991
64,134 38,294
Non-current 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£'000 £'900

Bank foans 301,407 111,857
Other lcans 1,250,942 649,619
1,552,349 761,476

Total borrowings 1,616,483 799,770

51



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
16. Borrowings (continued)

The nominal value of the Group’s berrowings at each reporting date 15 as follows

31 March 2018 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Accrued interest 29,134 14,991
Senior term loans 341,250 135,550
Shareholder loan notes 950,079 340 984
Connected party loan 97,328 87.551
Loan from parent entity 204,165 204,166
1,621,356 783,242

The fair value of the Group's borrowings at each reporting date s as follows

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Accrued interest 29,134 14 991
Senior term loans 336,407 135,160
Shareholder loan notes 1,014,192 379,415
Cornnected party loan 114,594 81,865
Loan from parent entity 122,156 178.239
1,616,483 799,770
The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are as follows
Interest rates on variable interest horrowings 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

% above LIBOR % above LIBOR

Shareholder loan notes 7.00% -
Semvor term loans 2.25% 160%
Cunnected party loan 10.50% 10 50%
Interest rates on fixed intergst horrowings 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Fixed rate Fixed rate
Shareholder loan notes 15.00% 15.00%
Lean from parent entity 0.00% 000%
Fair value discount rate 7.91% 7 80%

An anzlysis of the sensitivity of the fair value of borrowings to changes In the discount rate has been disclosed In
Note 1 to the Group Financial Statements
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16. Borrowings {continued)

The Group's borrowings have the following matunty profile
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£000 £'000
Less than one year 174,284 101.600
Two to five years 735,802 808.078
Over five years 1,451,158 -
2,361,244 609,678
Less interest cash flows
Senior term loans (40,737} (4,846)
Shareholder loan notes (620,840} (102,295)
Connected party loan (77,711} {19,295}
Loan from parent entity - -
Total principal cash flows 1,621,956 783,242

Dunng the year, the Group underwent significant refinancing of both external and shareholder debt On 14
December 2018, the Group settled existing borrowings under the 2014 facility and entered into a term loan of
£350 Om, resulting in a net increase In barrowings of £229 1m  These funds were used to repay shareholder loans
of £179 8m along with accrued interest of £48 3m  Interest on the new loans Is charged at a margin of between 15
and 2 5% plus LIBOR depending on leverage in the preceding quarter, as calculated as part of the covenant
compiiance requirements Information about the securty related to these loans ts included 1n note 30

The Compaﬁy issued £788 Om loan neotes to the sharehoider dunng the year, which attract annual interest at 7% +
LIBOR

The shareholder loan and cornected party loans are listed on the International Stock Exchange (‘TISE") On 31
December 2018 the Shareholder Loan notes had interest of £0 9m capitalised to the loan principal, and the
Connected party loan had interest of £9 8m capitalised to the loan principal These, together with the extension of
the loans to 2025, resulted in substantial modifications of the loans The senior term notes are secured by fixed and
floating charges over the assets of the Group

The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £10 Om at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 £10 Om)
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17. Provisions

£'000

At 1 Apnl 2018 1,374
Additions 10,243
Utilsed dunng the year (153}
At 31 March 2019 11,464
£000

At 1 Apnt 2017 2721
Utiised during the year (924)
Released during the year (423)
At 31 March 2018 1,374

The breakdown of provisions between current and non-current 1s as follows

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£000 £000
Current 1,413 807
Non-current 10,051 567
Total 11,464 1,374

Provisions include onerous lease provisions for vacant office and studio space that the Group has leased but 1s not
currently using, or where the Group s committed to vacate, 1 addition to costs of exit  The provision 1s calculated
as the difference between the total future lease payments less any amounts expected to be recovered by sub-
leasing the space There are tnherent uncertaintigs in measuring the provisions of the future outfiows

Provisions also include the costs of dismantiing outdoor advertising panels
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Froparty, plant and Financial Pension

equipment and Tax losses nstruments surplus Other Total
ntangible assets

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets 5844 1,908 8.185 - 34 15971
Deferred tax habiities (8.227) - (4,926) {196) - (14 .249)
AL 31 March 2018 (3,383} 1,008 3,259 (196) 34 18622
Charge to the income statement 5,064 (1.112) {5,734} (177} 262 (1697}
Recognised n other compreheng)ve ~ . _ 98 _ 98

ncome
Acquired in the year {33,358} 908 - 8 - (32,442)
At 31 March 2019 (31.677) 1,704 (2,475) {267) 296 (32.419)
Defarrad tax assets 4,061 1,704 - - 298 6,061
Deferrad tax llahilites (35,738) - (2,475} {287} - (38,480)
At 31 March 201% {31,677) 1,704 (2,475) {267} 296 (32,4189)
Deferred tax assets B.171 896 8,997 - 11 16 075
Deferred tax habihes 111 424) - 6 917} (2513 - (18.592)
A1 31 March 2017 {5.253) 896 2 0806 {251} 11 28171
Credit to the Income statement 1,870 1.012 1,179 23 23 4107
Recogrised in other comprehensive : B ; 22 B 32

neome
At 31 March 2018 {3,383) 1,908 3,259 {196) 34 1622
Deferred tax assets 5,844 1,908 8185 - 34 15971
Deferred tax kabibties (9.221 - {4,928} (1986) o = (14 349)
At 31 March 2018 {3 383) 1.508 3,259 (196) 34 1622

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on taxable temporary differences under the liabitity method using applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets and labilities are only offset where there 15 a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an
intention to settle the balances net

The following table lists the Group's unrecogrised deferred tax assets

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000

Property, piant and equipment 183 20
Tax icsses 15,965 14,093
Interest restncted under corporate interest restriction (GIR) carned forward 9,586 4 624
25,734 18,737

These potential deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it 1s not sufficiently certain when
taxable profits that can be utlised to absorb the reversal of the temparary difference will be made 1n the future

19. Share capital
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£ £
Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 171,889,147 171,889 147

171,889,147 171,889,147

20. Funding and financial risk management

Fmnancial nsk management
The Group holds and uses financial iInstruments to finance its operations and to manage its Interest rate and hquidity
nsks The Group primarily finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borrowings

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financial nsks market nsk (interest rate nsk and foreign exchange
risk), credit nsk and liquidity risk
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The Group is prmanly funded by debt and although both shareholder and bank loans have increased during the
year, the Group’s operations are cash generative, and the general exposure to iiguidity risk 1s considered {o be low
The Group monitors performance against its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

The Group does not engage n trading or speculative activities using derivative financial instruments
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure
Market risk

Market risk 1s the fisk that changes in prices, such as foreign exchange rates and nterest rates, will affect the
Group's income or the value of its haldings of financial instruments

Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nisk is the nsk of a change m the Group's cash flows due to a change in interest rates The Group has
bath fixed rate and floating rate borrowings The ratio of fixed to flaating rate borrowings s monttared-on an angaomyg
basis to ensure that the Group 1s not too exposed to variability in interest rates

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange rsk is the nisk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change 1n foreign cusrency exchange
rate The vast majonity of the Group’s income and expenditure 1s 1In pound Sterling therefore the Group 1s not
exposed to significant foreign exchange risk

Credit nisk

Crechit nisk 1s the nsk of financeal loss to the Group if 2 customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and anses pnncipally from the Group's receivables from customers

The Directors consider the Group's credit risk from cash, cash equivalents and deposits to be low as the Group only
enters transactions with banks or financial Instituttons with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has policies In place to manage potential credit nsk from trade receivables The Group mitigates the
risk of payment default by ts customers by the use of trade credit insurance for high value customers Customer
credit terms are determined using independent ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes in
customer circumstances or trading condificns Trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis by the Group’s
credit control department to ensure debts are recovered in full

The Directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for
Liqundhity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fail due The Group’s
finance department regularly monitors forecasts of the Group's haquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
ta meet operational needs

Capital management

The Group relies on capital for organic growth The Group defings capital as equity as shown in the Statement of
Financial Position plus net debt (total borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve an acceptable return on gross
capital

The Group manages sts capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic
plans Such measures include ensuring the Group maintains sufficient lquidity from the cash that the Group has
generated from operations

Fair value

Financtal assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents Financial liabil'ies comprise
trade and other payables and borrowings

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables 1s not
matenally different from their carrying value

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, including their value in the fair value hierarchy
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Fair value 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

higrarchy
£'000 £'000
Senior term loans Level 3 336,407 135,160
Shareholder loan notes Level 3 1,014,192 379.416
Connected party loan Level 3 114,594 91,965
Loan from parent entity Level 3 122,156 178,239
1,587,349 784,780

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or hability The investment in Exterion, disclosed in note 13, 1s
recorded at £428 1m and has been valued using a Level 3 input within the fair value hierarchy

Call and put options

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into call and put options to purchase subsidiary company
non-controlling interest shareholdings for Broadwick Holdings Limited, Waxarch Limited and Victorious Festivals
Limited The farr value of the Broadwick Holdings Limited and Victorious Festivals Limited optons was £nil at 31
March 2019 (2018 £nil) The option related to Waxarch Limited expired at the year ended 31 March 2019 without
exercise

Durnng the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into a put option agreement to purchase subsidiary
company non-controling interest shareholdings for Lock'N'Load Limited The fair value of this option at 31 March
2019 was £nil (2018 £nl)

Duning the prior year, the Group entered inte a cail and put option to purchase the remaining member interests of
Audic HQ LLC The fair value of this option at 31 March 2019 was £nil (2018 £nil)

A gross fiability has been recognised in non-current hab:lities and within reserves for the expected future settlement
of the put options where the Group currently has control of the related subsidiary, with movement in the expectation
accounted for withun administrative expenses in the current year The estimated cash outflow on exercise of the
opticns have been calculated by taking a multiple of future years’ EBITDA performance and discounting to present
value using the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capial

21. Non-controlling interests

£'000
At 1 April 2018 12,710
Acquisitions during the year 199
Share of profit after taxation for the year 2,240
Dividends paid to non-controling interests (3.428)
At 31 March 2019 11,721

£'000
At 1 April 2017 12,128
Acquisitions duning the year 1,218
Share of profit after taxation for the year - 1,018
Dwvidends patd to non-controlling interests (1,654)
At 31 March 2018 12,710
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The Group’s future minmum lease payments under non-canceilable operating leases are set out below

31 March 31 March

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Land and buildings
Within cne year 7,539 6,816
Between two and five years 24,479 23,470
After five years 38,921 43,334
67,939 73,620
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Motor vehicles and equipment
Within one year 1,236 1,079
Between two and five years 673 854
After five years . _
1,909 1,933
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Advertising sites
Within one year 42,101 -
Between two and five years 120,426 -
After five years 199,188 -
’ 361,718 -

The Group's future mimimum lease rental income expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases
1s as foliows

31 March 31 March

2019 2018
£000 £000
Lease rental income
Within one year 462 a7
Between two and five years 1,143 239
After five years 2,553 -
4,158 336

The Group leases property, motor vehicles and office equipment and advertising sites The Group's leases do not
include any matenal contingent lease payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restriction clauses

The Group 1s also a lessor and leases out properties These leases do not include any material contingent lease
payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restriction clauses
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During the year the Group traded with its associates, Jjoint ventures and with entities with common control to the
Group All transactions were in the normal course of business and priced under normal trade terms Al outstanding
balances are repayable on demand Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties, have been eliminated on conseglidation and are not disclosed in this note  Transactions between
the Group and its associates are disclosed below

The Company's mmediate parent company is Global Radio Group Limited (Jersey) Details of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 16

Durning the year, the Company was charged £1,299,598 (2018 £1,260,000) in respect of digital radio services by
CE Digital Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, of which £nil was cutstanding at 31 March 2019 (2018
£nil) The Company recerved £399,025 (2018 £271,000) i respect of legal expertise and engineering time from
CE Digital Limited

Digital Radio Group (London) Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, operates a digital radio multiplex
and during the year the Company paid £94,074 (2018 £118,000) to this company for fransmission services The
Company had an outstanding balance owing of £nil at 31 March 2018 (2018 £rul)

Now Dhgital East Midlands Limited, an associate of the Group, operates digital radio muttiplexes and durning the year
the Company paid £1,038,834 (2018 £765,000) to this company for transrmission services The Company had an
outstanding creditor of £nit at 31 March 2019 (2018 £nil)

Radio Centre Limited, in which the Group has an investment, 1s a trade body promoting commercial radio to
advertisers Racio Centre Limited 1s funded by levies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on
volumes of advertising revenue During the year the Company paid £1,724,478 (2018 £1,672,000) in levies to
Radio Centre Limited and had an outstanding balance of £mi at 31 March 2019 (2018 £nity

Global Radio Services Limited aiso provides contract accounting services for which it charged £40,138 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 {2018 £38,000) to the Group's non-wholly owned subsidiary independent Radio News
Limited (IRN), a provider of news services to commercial radic In addition, the Company's share of the IRN rebate
to clienit stations for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to £3, 458,067 {2018 £3,515,000) At the financial
year end the net balance due to Independent Radio News Limited at 31 March 2019 was £1,380,475 (2018
£1,348,000)

Durng the year the Group had a number of recharge arrangements with vanous members of the Global
Entertainment and Taient Group, with whom the Group shares a director As at 31 March 2019 the outstanding
debtor was £123,915 (2018 £nil)

During the year the Company charged the Global Entertainment and Talent Group £nii (2018 £30,000) in respect
of occupancy

During the year, the Group recognised rebate income of £465,900 (2018 £364,000) from a related party, Kaboodle,
with whom the Group shares a director At 31 March 2019 there was an outstanding balance due to the Group of
£124,400 (2018 £271,000)

The Group considers the Directors to be key management personne! Related party transactions with key
management personnel have been disclosed in note 6

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no other related party transactions during the year
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During the year, the Group made several acquisitions across the media industry, into digstal advertising (on-air and
out-of-home) as well as radio broadcasting Smaller acquisitions were also made in the music events and
production industres

Date of
Name acquisition Country % Ownership Purchaser Business Unit

Global Radio Services

Project lconic Holdings Limited 16/07/2018 UK 100 0% Limited Qutdoor

Lancashire Broadcasting " Galaxy Radio

Company Limted 3110712018 UK 100 0% Manchester Limited Radio
Global Radio Sel

Beil Holdco Limted 20/08/2018 UK 100 0% ° 19 Services Quioor

Limed
Leanstreaminc 311042018 Canada Trade and assets DAX Digial Audio Radio
Exchange Inc
Beven Limted 17/12/2018 UK 100 0% Boardmasters Ltd Festivals
VHEH Limted 1711212018 UK 100 0% Boardmasters Lid Festivals

Outdoor acquisitions

Qutdoor Plus and Pnmesight

The Group diversified into out-of-home media (“Outdoor”) dunng the current year, making a senes of strategic
acquisitions into the sector, two of which represent business combinations under IFRS 3 These acquisitions will
allow the Group to further expand its advertising offering to clients and consumers, providing oppertunities for
vertica!l integration as well as geographical diversification

The purchase ofthe Project lcorme Holdings Limited group (including its trading operations as Qutdoor Plus Limited)
completed in August 2018 and Bell Hoidco Limited (Pnmesight Limited) in September 2018

On 15 November 2018, Global Radio Services Limited completed its acquisition of the entire share capstal of
Semper Veritas Holdings S ar | {(Extenon)

The acquisition of Exterion I1s not considered a business combination under IFRS 3 as at the reporting date, as on
14 November 2018, the CMA served an imtial enforcement order (IEQ) under section 72(2) of the Enterpnse Act
2002 in relation to the completed acquisition, placing significant restrictions on Globai’'s management of the Exterion
business The CMA cleared the completed acquisition on 16 April 2019, from which date control passed to the
Group and the Exterion businesses fully consclidated As at the year end, the Group's interest in Exterion 1s
recorded as an investment at fair vatue (note 13)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the two outdoor businesses defined as a business combination under IFRS
3 form an operating segment and a single cash-generating unit, with separate reporting and discrete financial
ilutmalion dssessed by manayermenl on @ tionthly basis The new division s in the early slages of nleyration
and the goodwill on acguisition has not been allocated untl synergies have been fully assessed

The fair valuation of the acquired assets and liabilites remains in progress as at the date of preparation of the
financial statements, as permitted within the measurement period under IFRS 3, as management's compilation of
the necessary financial Information for specific judgements 1s ongoing Provisional fair value of identifiable assets
and habilittes acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill for each Outdoor acquisition 1s histed below
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Outdoor Plus Primesight Total

fair value
£'000 £000 £'000

Intangible assets 75,166 104,770 179,936
Property, plant and equipment 34,145 28,492 62,637
Trade and other receivables 10,545 26,113 36,658
Cash 1,083 3,227 4,310
Other assets 153 - 153
Trade and other payables (117 .824) (140,358) (257,982)
Deferred tax Wiability (13,224) (18,083) (31,307)
Net assets acquired (9,756) 4 161 (5,595)
Goodwill 42 813 106,448 149 261
Total consideration 33,057 110,609 143,666
Satisfied by:

Cash 32,757 110 609 143,366
Deferred consideration 300 - 300
33,057 110,609 143,666

Goodwill 1s calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and liabilities
None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

Deferred consideration of £0 3m is in respect of payments to former employees 18 months post-completion and
attracts no service-related condition A separate retention bonus of £1 5m s also payable at this time, contingent
on continued employment, and as such has been recognised as remuneration evenly throughout the service penod

Deal-related costs of £2 1m have been charged to administration expenses Iin the Income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 reiating to the Outdoor Plus and Pnmesight acquisitions and are not recognised within
consideration

Since the acquisition dates, the acquired entiies have contributed £52 1m to the Group's revenue and a loss of
£8 9m If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2018, the acquired entities would have contnbuted £83 5m to the
Group’s revenue and £1 5m to retained profit

Acquisition of Semper Venitas S a r | (Exterron)

As referenced above, the Group has not consolidated the Exterion results into the Group's financial reporting as at
31 March 219 and has recorded the transaction as an investment as at the reporting date

The acquisition accounting for the Exterion business combination 1s incomplete at the time the financial statements
have been authonsed for issue. and as such, the Group has not made the required disclosures under IFRS 3
paragraph BG4

Radio acquisitions

During the year, the Group made two separate acquisitions within the Radio operating segment, both of which are
deemed indmidually immatenal The Group acquired 100% of the equity share capital of Lancashire Broadcasting
Company In order to extend its reach nationwide and the acquisition of the trade and assets of Leanstream inc will
aliow the Group to widen its audience in the digital advertising space and expand further into North America The
farr values of identfiable assets and habilites acquired, purchase consideration and goodwtll for these acquisitions
are shown below
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Total
fair value
£'000
Intangible assets 1,179
Property, plant and equipment 127
Trade and other receivables 283
Cash 21
Trade and other payables (420)
Deferred tax liability (2086)
Net assets acquired 984
Goodwill 1.101
Total consideration 2085
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,735
Contingent consideration 350
2,085

Goodwill 1s calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and habiities
None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

Contingent consideration of £0 4m was determined based on revenue targets in the four months post-completion

Deal-related costs of £0 3m have been charged to administration expenses In the Income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 relating to the two Radio acquisitions

Since the acquisition date, the acquired entiies have contributed £1 1m to the Group's revenue and a loss of £0 1m
If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2018, the acquired entities wouid have contributed £2 1m to the Group's
revenue and £0 1m to retained loss

Festivals acquisitions

During the year, the Group made two acquisitions within the live events and production industry, included within the
Festivals operating segment

Total
fair value
£'000
Intangible assets 9,773
Property, plant and equipment 2
Trade and other receivables 1
Cash 3
Trade and other payables (957)
Deferred tax lability o _(3,304)
Net assets acquired 7,518
Goodwili 1,262
Non-contrelling interests {198)
Total consideration 8,582

Satisfied by:

Cash 8,582
Contingent consideration -

8,582
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On 21 September 2018 the Company purchased 51% of the ordinary share capital of Hydra Events Limited,
incorporated in the United Kingdom

On 17 December 2018 the Company purchased 100% of the ordinary share capital of Boardmasters || Limited
(formerly known as Vision Nine Entertainment Holdings Limited) in order to subscnbe for redeemable shares in
Eleven Limited Management acquired Boardmasters 1l Limited in order to exit a strategic services agreement,
under which Eleven Limited were entitled to 45% share of profit

Gooedwill 1s calculated as the difference between the farr value of consideration and acquired assets and habilities
None of the purchased goodwill 15 deductible for tax purposes

Deal-related costs of £0 3m have been charged to administration expenses in the Income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 relating to the two Festival acquisitions

Since the acquisition date, the acquired entities have contributed £1 2m to the Group’s revenue and a prefit of
£10m If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2018, the acquired entities would have contributed £4 Om to the
Group's revenue and £0 8m to retained profit

25. Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settied share-based payment arrangements as follows
The Growth Shares Scheme ("the Scheme”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquired C, D, E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directars pad
unrestricted market value The C, D, E and F shares are subject to a put and call optien structure whereby the
directors may seli the shares to GRHL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within various
60 day windows between 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025. The vaiue at which the shares can be bought
or sold shall be determined by a formula based on the growth in value of the shares over a certain mimnimum
threshold value The shares provide the holder with an interest in the growth of the business beyond that threshald,
which has been set at 20% above the original value

Further on 1 August 2017 a number of directors acquired G shares (n GRHL, for which the directors paid unrestncted
market value The G shares are subject to a put and call option structure whereby the directors may sell the shares
to GRHL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within a 60-day window between 1 August
2020 and 30 September 2020 The value at which the shares can be bought or soid shall be determined by a
formuia based on the growth In value of the shares over a certain mimimum threshold value The shares provide
the holder with an interest in the growth of the business beyond that threshold, which has been set at 17 5% above
the onginal value

The number of C.D, E and F shares 1ssued 1n 2015 and G shares 1ssued in 2017 and outstanding at 31 March 2019
was 421,150 (31 March 2018 421,150)

The EBITDA used to determine the value of the C.D E, F and G Shares will be the EBITDA for the year ended
immediately before the date of disposal

Share-based payment expense
The charge recognised in the Income Statement in respect of the Scheme was £4,835,000 (2018 £4,835,000)
Share-based payment habiiity

The Scheme requires the Group to pay the intnnsic value of these share-based payments to the employee at the
date of exercise The hability 15 re-valued at each reporting date and settiement date with any changes to fair value
being recognised in profit and loss The Group has recorded hapiliies in respect of unvested grants of £14,306,000
(2018. £9,471,000)

26. Pension schemes

The Group operates three penston schemes on behalf of its employees The Global Radio Group Personal Pension
Plan ("GRGPPP"}) 1s a defined contnbution scheme

All current employees are eligible to join the GRGPPP, which new employees are enrolled in automatically when
they begin empioyment with the Group At 31 March 2019, 1,376 (2018 1,330) employees were active members
of this scheme The Group makes age-related employer contributions to the scheme

The Captal Radio plc Pension and Assurance Scheme ("CRPPAS") and the Midlands Radio Group Pension
Scheme ("MRGPS”") are contributory defined benefit schemes Both defined benefit schemes were closed to new
employees from 31 March 1895 At 31 March 2019, the MRGPS had 5 (2018 5) active members and the CRPPAS
had 4 (2018 4) active members The trustees of each scheme are responsible for the governance of the pension
plan and the Group does not hold a direct interest in any of the scheme's funds The Group operates within the
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schedule of contributions set out by the Trustees and is not subject to any mimimum funding requirements  No other
entity 1s responsible for the governance of the plan beyond the board of trustees

At the year end, the plan liabdities of the Group's defined benefit schemes had a weighted average duration of 18 7
years

The pension cost charge for the year represents contributions payable by the Group to the schemes and amounted
to £5,025,000 (2018 £2,034,000)

Contributions amounting to £27 000 (2018 £87,000) were payable to the schemes at the end of the financial year
and are Included in other creditors

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settiements durnng the year

The actual return on the two defined benefit pension schemes assets over the period from 1 Apnl 2018 to 31 March
2019 was a gain of £1,146,000 for MRGPS and £382,000 for CRPPAS (gain for the period from 1 Apri! 2017 to 31
March 2018 was £333,000 and £231,000 respectively) Each asset class has a quoted market price in an active
market, as defined in IFRS 13

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption 1s assessed by considenng the current level of returns
on nsk-free investments {primarily government bonds) and the expectations for the nsk premium of each asset
class The expected return for each asset class is then weighted based on the asset allocaton to develop the
expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio

The amounts recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as follows

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

£'000 £'000

Present vaiue of funded obhigations (42,960) ° (40,752)
Fair value of scheme assets 44,586 41,841
Surplus In scheme . 1,626 1,089
Midlands 833 396
Capital 793 693
Total surplus 1,626 1,089

The amounts recognised in the consaolidated Income Statement are as foliows

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

£000 £'000

Current service cost (203) {203)

Past senvice cost (262) -
Interest on obligation (1,086) {1,148)
Expected return on scheme assets 1,124 865
Total {407) (488)
Actual return on scheme assets 1,528 574

64



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows

Opening defined benefit obhgation
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Contrnibutions by scheme participants
Actuanal losses / (gains)

Benefits paid

Clesing defined benefit obligation

Changes In the fair value of scheme assets were as follows

Opening fair value of scherme assets
Expected return on assets

Actuanal gams / {losses)
Contributions by empioyer
Cantnbutions by scheme participants
Benefits pard

Expenses paid by scheme

Closing fair value of scheme assets

31 March 2019 31 March
2018

£'000 £'000
40,752 41,698
203 203
262 -
1,066 5,148
22 14
1,769 (407}
(1,114) (1,904)
42 960 40,752
31 March 2019 31 March
2018

£'000 £'000
41,841 43,090
1,124 865
404 (291)
2,368 142
22 20
{1,114} (1.904)
(59) (81)
44,586 41.841

The total amount recognised It the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of actuanal gains on
assets 15 £404,000 (2018 loss of £291,000) and the amount recognised for actuanal losses on labilites 1s
£1,769,000 (2018 gain of £245.000)

The two schemes are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contribute a percentage of salary
The funding reguirements are based on the pension fund's actuanal measurement framework set out In the funding
policies of the plan

The Group expects ta conirbute £254, 000 to s defined benefit pension schemes In 2019 (2018 £144,000)

The major categonies of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

Equities 17.61% 22 00%
Sonds 29.33% 29 54%
Diversified growth funds 43.77% 44 65%
Gilts 7.44% 300%
Cash 1.85% 0 80%
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Principal actuanal assumptions at the reporting dates were (expressed as weighted averages)

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

Discount rate 2.45% 2 65%
Future salary increases 3.45% 3 30%
Future pension increases 3.55% 348%
inflatton assumplion 2.95% 2 80%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are

31 March 2019 31 March
2018
Number Number
Retiring today
Males 22.0 219
Females 239 239
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.4 233
Females 25.5 254
Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows
31 March 2013 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2017 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Defined benefit obligation {42,960) (40 752) (41 898) (35 857 (40 808)
Scheme assets 44 586 41841 43 090 39 391 44 542
1,626 1089 1392 3,524 4134
Expenence adustments on scheme habilities {1.769) 407 (5.308) 1804 B1681}
Expenence adusiments on scheme assels 404 (614) 3021 {2 739) 3363

Under IAS 19 both schemes show a surplus in accordance with IAS 19, the Group has recognised an asset on the
Statement of Financiat Position in relation to the surplus In the schemes because the Group has an unconditional
nght to realise the surplus during the plan or when the plan i1s settled

The Group s exposed to a number of nsks relating to the defined benefit schemes (the “schemes”) including
assumptions not being borne out in practice The most sigruficant risks are as follows

Asset volatifity

There 1s 2 risk that a fall In asset values 1s not matched by corresponding reduction 1n the value placed on the
schemes The schemes hold a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outperform corporate or
government bond yields in the long term but gives exposure to volatility and rigk in the short term

Change in bond yrelds

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme’s liabilities, although this will be
partially offset by an increase 1n the value of the scheme’s corporate bond holdings

inflation risk

The majonty of the scheme’s habilites are linked to inflation where higher inflation will lead to higher scheme
habilites Some of the scheme assets are either unaffected by inflation or loosely correlated with 'nfiation (e g
growth assets), meaning that an mncrease in inftation will generally increase scheme llabidities

Life expectancy

An increase in life expectancy will lead to an increased value being placed on the scheme’s habilities Future
mortality rates cannot be predicted with certainty
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Actuarial assumption sensibivity

The discount rate 15 set by reference to market conditions at the reporting date, and can vary significantly between
periods The earnings Increases are linked to inflation and so set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date The montalty assumptions used are set by considenng the expenence of the scheme's members, and by
making an atllowance for possible future improvements in longewity Mortality assumptions are difficult to set
accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortaity improvement is inevitably speculative

The discount rate, earnings increases and inflation rates are set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date, and can vary significantly between periods

A decrease In the discount rate by 0 1% will increase the scheme's liabiities by £776,000 (2018 increase of
£739,000)

An increase In inflation and salary growth assumptions by 0 1% will increase the scheme's liabilities by £269,000
(2018 increase of £277,000)

27. Note supporting Statement of Cash Flows

Significant non-cash transactions in the year in respect of financing activittes comprised unpaid interest which was
capitalised into borrowings of £37 4m {2018 £51 5m) and no loans {2018 £3 9r) were converted to share capital

28. Subsequent events

The Group completed several disposals post-year end n relation to the music festivals dvision In a number of
separate transactions, to different buyers

On 16 April 2019, the Competition and Markets Authority gave clearance with regards to the acquisition of the
Exterion group, which had previously been under a Phase ! investigation, Iifing the restnictions over operational
and legal control over the acquired entites At the year end, the acquistion has been recorded as an investment
in the Conseolidated Statement of Financial Position, but upon gaining control, the results have been consolidated
in the Group's financial reporting and will be inciuded in the financial statements to 31 March 2020

Post year-end, the Group commenced Iits restncting plans to network breakfast shows on its Capital and Heart
brands, as wel!l as the drivetime show on Smooth, bringing the capttal’'s high-quality programming nationwide

There are no other subsequent events to report

29. Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opinien of the Directors the Company’'s immediate and ultmate controlling company 1s Global Radio Group
Limited, & company incorporated 1n Jersey

The targest and smallest group \n which the resuilts of the Company are consolidated i1s that headed by Global
Media & Entertainment Limited

30. Guarantees, financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Guarantees

The Company will guarantee the debts and labilities of certain of its UK subsidiaries at the reporting date in
accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 The Company has assessed the probability of loss under
these guarantees as remote

Securty

The assets of the Group are pledged to their bankers as secunity against loans by way of a floating charge over the
assets

VAT Group

The Company is a member of a group for VAT for group purposes, resulting in a joint and several iiability for amounts
owing by other Group companies for unpaid VAT

Fmnancial commitments

The Group has entered into agreements with transmission supply companes and digital multiplex operators for the
transmssion of its radio stations for penods up to 2028 at competitive prices and to ensure supply At the year end
the commitments to purchase space on transmitters was £104 5m (2018 £123 2m)
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Appendix to the Group Financial Statements

The appendix to the Group Financial Statements does not form part of the audited Annual Report and Financial
Statements

Alternative Performance Measures

The Group measures its normal trading performance on a regular basis using a range of financial and non-financial
key performance indicators, the key being adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, interest,
depreciation, amorbisation and non-recuring items)

A reconcilighon between the statutory measure 'operating profit’ to the alternative measure 'EBITDA’ is shown betow

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
Note £'000 £'000

Operating profit 42,342 83.096
Depreciation of property, piant and egupment 11 11,543 4,445
Amortisation of intangibles 10 25,058 19 412
Mavement 1n fair value of put options (962) (9.083)
Other operating expenses 39,227 6,140
Adjusted EBITDA 117,208 104.010

Adjusted EBITDA is considered a key performance measure for the Group given that
a) Itis a proxy for cash flows and helps to assess and manage liquidity across the Group,

b) The measure is used in the Growth Share Scheme in tracking performance, and therefore has an impact
on Directors’ remuneration on vesting dates, and

c) The measure 18 used by the Group’s lenders as part of the debt covenants, and as such reporting and
analysis is required monthly

The key performance measures used by the Group have not changed from the prior year and management's
Interpretation of other operating expenses remains consistent Management continue to identtfy the following items
as non-operational or non-recurring i nature and are excluded in adjusted EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation These do not represent cash costs and are removed from the measure

Movement in fair vatue of put options These refate to acquisition activily and are therefore non-recurring In
nature

Other operating expenses These include any charges or credits relating to non-recurnng items

including restructunng and integraton costs, such as launch costs
inctuding rebranding, redundancy costs, vacant property costs as well
as costs of acquisition

A breakdown of non-recurring costs, or other operating expenses, 15 shown befow

Year ended 31 March Year ended 31

Non recurring costs 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000

Group Exceptional costs 25,419 -
Festivals Exceptional costs 1,705 4,653
Radio Exceptionai costs 11,747 1487
Outdoor Exceptional costs 356 -
39,227 6,140

+

Significant non-recurning items within the radic operating segment include costs of acquisition, costs associated with
the CMA process and of the regional restructure  Non-recurrning items aliocated to ‘group items’ relate to the
impairment of the Festivals goodwill and brands during the year to 31 March 2019 Festivals nan-recurring costs
include prefessional costs associated with acquisitions made it the year
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Company Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2019
Company number 06251684

31 March 31 March

2019 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
investments 32 92,581 92,440
92,581 92,440
Current assets
Debtors 33 1,239,837 435,773
Cash 26 15
1,289,863 431,788
Greditors: amounts falling due within one year 34 (71,229) (42,188)
Net current assets 1,218,634 473,976
Total assets less current liabilities 1,311,215 482,040
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 35 (1,552,491) (761,478)
Net liabilities (241,276) (279,436)
Equity
Share capital 36 171,889 171,889
Retained deficit (413,165) {451,325)

{241,278) (279,438)

The Company's profit for the year was £38 2m (2018 loss of £4 1m)
The notes on pages 71 to 79 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 26 July 2019 and
were signed on its behalf by

<G

D D Singer
Director
26 July 2019
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2017
Loss for the year
Issued In the year
At 31 March 2018

Share capital Retained Total equity
{note 36) deficit
£000 £°000 £'000
171,889 (451,325) (279.436)
- 38,180 38,1860
171,889 {413,165} (241,276)
Share capital Retained Total equity
(note 36) deficit
£'000 £'000 £'000
165,310 (447 184) (281,874)
- (4,141) {(4,141)
6,579 - 6,579
171,889 (451,325) (279,436)

The notes on pages 71 to 79 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

31. Accounting policies for the Company financial statements
a) Reporting entity

Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the "Company”) I1s an incorporated company Imited by shares and
domicded in the United Kingdom Its registered address 1s 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA

The Company’s principal activity was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom and the
sale of advertising across its network

The Company financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 26 July 2019

b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting Reguirements ("FRS 100") and Financiai Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Bisclosure Framework (‘FRS 101") and the Companies Act 2006

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006 information about the Company's employee numbers
and costs have not been presented

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 20086, the Company's Profit and Loss Account and Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income and related notes have not been presented as the Company’s Group financiat
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

¢) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented In pound sterling (£), which 1s the Company's functienal and
presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis, and are in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented i1n these financial
statements

In prepanng these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptons conferred
by FRS 101 Therefore these financial statements do not include

» certain comparative iInformation as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS,

+ certain disclosures regarding the company's capital,

+ a Statement of Cash Fiows,

« the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted,

« the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnei, and

« disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly-owned members of the group headed by
Global Media & Entertainment Limited

in addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent
disclosures are included in the Group financial statements of Global Media & Entertainment Limited These
financial statements deo not include certain disclosures in respect of

«  Financial Instruments (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair value),

+ Fair vaiue measurement (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at far value), and

+ Imparrment of assets

e) Investments

Investments are included it the Balance Sheet at cost less amounts written-off, representing impairment in value,
which has been recorded at fair value Impairment charges are recorded If events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
31. Accounting policies for the Company financial statements {continued}

f) Going concern

At the date of these financial statements, the Directors have carried out a detalled and comprehensive review of
the business and its future prospects in particular they have compared the forecast future performance of the
Company and anticipated cash flows with the availlable working capital facihtes and covenants contained in the
banking arrangements that form part of the Company's current financing structure and, 1n the hght of current
economic conditions, have considered the abihity of the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due In the opinion
of the Directors, the Company are expected to be able to continue trading within the current arrangements and
consequently the financial statements are presented on a going concern basis

a) Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company’s accounting policies are the same as the Group’s accounting policies, as detalled in note 1 to the
Group financial statements, for the following

Company FRS 101 accounting policy Group IFRS accounting policy Note
New accounting standards New accountng standards 1h
Critical accounting estimates and judgments Crtical accounting estmates and judgments 11
Debtors Trade and cther receivables 1q
Cash Cash 1r
Share capital Share capital 1s
Creditors Trade and other payables 1t
Interest recewvable and similar income Finance iIncome and expense 1v
Interest payable and similar expense Finance income and expense 1v
Financial instruments Financial instruments Tw
Current and deferred tax Current and deferred tax 1x
Revenue recegnition Rewvenue recognition 10b
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement 1dd

31. Directors

Infarmation on the Company's Directors 1s provided in note 6 to the Group financial statements

32. Investments

Investments in
subsidiary
companies
£0060

At 1 Apnl 2018 92,440
Additions, 141
At 31 March 2019 92,581
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
32. Investments {continued)

The Company's subsidianries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are

%ordinary share capital

Name Country .
ownership

Arrow Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Atlantic Broadcasting Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Audioc HQ LLC United States of Amernica 65

Beat FM Limsted United Kingdom 100
Bell Bidco Limited” United Kingdom 100
Global Qutdoor Media Heldings Limited* United Kingdom 100
Bell Intermedsate Limited* United Kingdom 100
Boardmasters 1l Limited United Kingdom 100
Boardmasters Limited United Kingdom 876
Broadwick Holdings Limited United Kingdom 586
Broadwick Live Limited United Kingdom 586
Broadwick Venues Limited United Kingdom 50

Brownstock UK Limited United Kingdom 8§76
Buzz FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Cambndge and Newmarket FM Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital (CDWM) Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Hampshire Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Kent Limited United Kingdom 100
Capitai Gold Manchester Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold SussexLimited United Kingdom 100
Capttal Interactive Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Online Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio (London) Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Investments Limited” Umited Kingdem 100
Capital Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Trustee Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Telewsion Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Xtra Limited* United Kingdom 100
Castieform Limited United Kingdom 100
Central European Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Champton FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Cheerdale Limited United Kingdom 100
Chill Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Chiltern Radio Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Choice FM Lendon Limited United Kingdom 100
Chotce FM North London Limited United Kingdom 100
Classic FMBV Netherlands 100
Classic FMLimited* United Kingdom 100
Contnental Angel Lirmited United Kingdom 100
Core Dhgital Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Coiswold Broadcasting Company Limiied United Kingdam 100
Count of Ten Limited United Kingdom 876
DAXUS Inc United States of Amernca 100
Deansgate 1001 Limited United Kingdom 100
Deltrack Limited* United Kingdom 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and habilittes are guaranteed by the Company at the

reporting date 1n accordance with sechon 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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32. investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiarnies, Inciuding subsidianes held by indirect holding companies, are

% ordinary share capital

Name Country )
ownership

Devonarr Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Digital Audig Exchange Limited® United Kingdom 100
Digital News Network Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
DQ Radio Services Limited* United Kingdom 100
East Anglian Rachio Limited United Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited United Kingdom 160
Electnc Elephant Limrted United Kingdom 586
Eleven Limited United Kingdom 100
Essex Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Expressway Limited United Kingdom 100
Falcon Outdoor (North) Limited® United Kingdom 100
First Oxfordshire Radio Company Limited” United Kingdom 100
FNG Limited United Kingdom 557
Galaxy Radio Birmingham Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Manchester Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio North East Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited* United Kingdoem 100
GCap Media (CRUD) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (FPRL) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Medta Limited United Kingdam 100
Gemini Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global 05699567 Limited Linited Kingdom 876
Global Festivais Limited United Kingdom 876
Global Kit Limited United Kingdom 526
Global Live Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Media Group Servuces Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Global Media Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Music Telewsion Limited” United Kingdom 100
Global Quidoor Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Qutdoor Media Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio (AM) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radic Acquisitions Limited™* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Hampshire Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radip Holdings Limited™* United Kingdam 104
Global Radio Limited United Kingdem 160
Giobal Radio London Limited* United Kingdom 100
Gioba! Radio Media Management Limited* Unrted Kingdom 100
Global Radio Midiands Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Narthwest Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Publishing Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Services Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
Globat Radio UK Limited United Kingdom 100
GMRadio News (UK) Limited United Kingdom 55

GM&E GmpH Germany 100
GM&E Sar| France 100

* Exemptian from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and labiities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date 1n accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

** Direct holdings of Global Media & Entertainment Limrted as at the date of signing

Gn 25 July, the Company acquired the remaining equity on Global Radic Haldings Limited from Global Radio
Acquisitions Limited
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32. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding compames, are

% ordinary share capital

Name Country .
ownership

GMG Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Ground Cantrol Preductions Limited United Kingdom 59

GWR (Local Area) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (Trustee Company) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (West) Limited® United Kingdom 100
GWR East Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
GWR Group Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR Hungary {Investments) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Investments Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR New Zealand Licences Limited New Zeatand 100
GWR New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100
GWR Radio (South East) Limited” United Kingdom 100
GWR Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Hariow FM Limited United Kingdem 100
Healthbuild Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart 106 FM Limited Unied Kingdom 100
Heart Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart TV Limited United Kingdom 100
Hereward Radio Limited Unnted Kingdom 100
Hit40 UK Limited United Kingdom 100
Hopstar Limited™ Unned Kingdom 100
Hydra Events Limited Unnted Kingdom 100
Independent Radio News Limited United Kingdom 55

industnal Curaton Limited United Kingdom 32

Investors in Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Inwcta Concerts and Promotions Limited United Kingdom 100
Jams of Lendon Limited United Kingdom 100
Juice Holdco Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Lakeside Creatives Limited United Kingdom 57 8
Lancashire Broadcasting Company Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Lantern Radio Limited United Kingdom 99

LBC 1152 Limited United Kingdom 100
LBC Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
DAX Bigital Audio Exchange Inc Canada 100
Leicester Sound Limited” United Kingdom 100
Lite Spaces Limited* United Kingdom 100
Livetime Limited United Kingdom 100
Lock 'n’ Load Events Limited United Kingdom 657
Marcher Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Maxec Cutdoor Limited™ United Kingdom 10C
Mhid Anglia Radio Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Mowing Mus:c Limited United Kingdom 657
Mwah Mwah Limied United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Bath Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Shacks Limited United Kingdom 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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32. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidianes, mncluding subsidianes held by indirect holding companies, are

Name

Country

% ordinary share capita!

ownership

My Kinda Square Limited
Neal Street Blues Limited
Ocean FMLimited
Orchard FM Limited™
Orchard Media Limited
Qutdoor Plus Limited™
Owval (709) Limited
Plymouth Sound Limited*
Power FM Limited
Prestfold Limited

Primesight Airport Advertising Limited

Primesight Airports Limited
Pnmesight Billboards Limited*

Primesight Communicaticns Limited
Primesight Intermediate Holdco Limited™

Primesight Limited
Printworks Entertainment Limited
Prock Licence (NTLRSL) Limued
Project lconic Bidco Limited™
Project iconic Holdings Limited”
Project lconic Mideo Limited™
Pure Butter Limited
Radio Broadland Limited*
Radio Invicta Limited™
Radic Mercury Limited*
Radw Orwell Limied
Radio South Limited
Radio Trent Limited”
Ram FM Limited
Real and Smooth Limited™
Real Radio (North East) Limited*
Real Radio (North west) Limited™
Real Radio (Scotland) Limted*
Real Radio Limited*
Rewind Festival Limited
Riviera Radio Limited
Rock Radic Limited
Saxon Radio Limited

. SBH Events Limited
Scott Place 1002 Limited
Scott Place 1003 Limited
Scott Place 1004 Limited
Smooth Digttal Radio Limited

Smooth Radio Investments Limited™

Smooth Radio London Limited™
Smooth Radio Scotland Limited*™

Smooth Radio West Midlands Limited*

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entites’ debts and hatilites are guaranteed by the Company at the

Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unrited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unrted Kimgdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

reporting date in accordance with section 473A of the Compames Act 2006
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
32. investments (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries, including subsidianies held by indirect holding companies, are

Yo ordi ital
Name Country Yoordinary share capita

ownership

Scuth Hams Radio Limitec United Kingdom 635
Southern Radie Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Southern Radio Limited™ Umted Kingdom 100
Storm (GWR) Lim ited United Kingdom 100
Storm Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Suffolk Group Radio Limited® United Kingdom 100
Tams:de Limited* United Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Group Limited United Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Thamesquote Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group {Investments) Limited” United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group Limited™ United Kingdom 100
The Hideout Festival LLP United Kingdom 70

The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdem 100
The Northamptonshire Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdem 100
The Storm (Digital Radio) Limited United Kingdem 100
This s Global Limited Unite¢ Kingdom 100
Truck Festivals UK Limited United Kingdom 87 6
TS Holdings Limited United Kingdom 1¢0
Two Counties Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Victericus Festivals Limited United Kingdom 57 4
Waxarch Limited United Kingdom 708
We the Unicorns Limited* United Kingdom 100
Welowelocal com Limited” United Kingdom 100
West Country Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiltshire Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Wirral FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Xfm Limited ™ United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited” United Kingdam 100
Y Not Festivals UK Limited United Kingdam 100
Pap buzz Limited”™ United Kingdam 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entites’ debts and liabiities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

The Company's subsidhianes all have a year end of 31 March, with the exception of Lock’N'Load Limited and
Waxarch Limited, which have a year end of 30 September and Audio HQ LLC which has a year end of 31
December

Cn 18 Apni 2018 Global Festivals Limited was renamed Superstruct UK Festivals Limsted On 25 Apnil 2018 Angels
in Radio Limited was renamed Giobal Qutdeor Media Limited On 26 March 2019 Amber Radio was renamed
Global Media Group Services Limited On 31 December 2018 Vision Nine Entertainment Holdings Limited was
renamed Boardmasters Il Limited On 10 June 2019 Bell Holdco Limited was renamed Global Outdoor Media
Holdings Limited

The Company’s subsidiaries registered address 1s 30 Leicester Square, Londen, WC2H 7LA with the exception of
the following entiies
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments (continued)

Company

Registered Address

Audio HQLLC

Bell Bidco Limited

Beli Holdco Limited

Bell Intermediate Limited
Classic FMBvY
Continental Angel Limited

DAXUS Ing

Deltrack Limrted

Faican Qutdoor (North) Limited
GMRadic News (UK) Limited

GMBE GmbH

GM&E Sarl

GWR New Zealand Licences Limited

GWR New Zealand Limited
Independent Radio News Limited
InLink Limited

Leanstream inc

Lite Spaces Limited

Maxx Quidoor Limited

Qutdoor Plus Limited

Prestfold Limited

Primesight Asrport Advertising Limited
Primesight Airports Limited
Prtmesight Bitiboards Limited
Primesight Communications Limited

Primesight Intermediate Holdco Limited
Pnmesight Limited

Project lconic Bidco Limited

Project iconic Holdings Limited

Mroject lconic Midco Limited

Reai Radio (Scotland} Limited

Rock Radig Limited

Smooth Radio Scotiand Limited

33. Debhtors

Loans to subsidiaries
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Deferred tax asset

138 Mitlard Avenue, New York 10708

22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom W1 T 2BU

22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom W1 T 2BU

22 Percy Street, London United Kingdom, W1 T 28U
Naarderpoort 2, 1411MA, Naarden, The Nethertands

20-22 Great Titehfield Street, London, United Kingdom W1W 8BE

874 Watker Road Suice C City of Dover, County of Kent Delaware
1990430

20-22 Great Trtchfield Street. London, United Kingdomn ., W1W 8BE
22 Percy Street, London, Ursted Kingdom, W1T 28U

Academic House. 24-28 Oval Road. London. NwW1 700

cfo Taylor Wessing, 1 Sartorplatnz, 880331 Munich

4 rue Marnvaux, 75002, Paris

10 Brandon Street, Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

10 Brandon Street, Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

Academic House, 24-28 Oval Road. London, NW1 70J

22 Percy Street. London, United Kingdom , W1T 28U

2800 Park Place, 666 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC VBC 227
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdoem, W1W 8BE
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 8BE
20-22 Great Titchfietd Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W BBE
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 8BE
22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom. W1T 28U

22 Percy Street, London. United Kingdem, W1T 2BU

22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom W1 T 2BU

22 Percy Street. London, United Kingdom WAT 2BU

22 Percy Street, Londoen, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU

22 Percy Street, Landon, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU

20-22 Greal Titchfield Street, Londen Uniled Kingdom, W1W 8BE
89 New Bond Street, London, England, W1S 1DA

20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 00DC
1 West Regent Street Glasgow, G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 tRW

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
367,313 367,313
922,524 62,380
- 2,080
1,289,837 431,773
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
33. Debtors (continued)

The Drrectors have considered the value in use of the investment and have concluded that an impairment in the
investment value is not applicable

The intra-group loans are repayable on demand Loans within the Radic operating segment incur annual interest
of 6% and loans between Radio and Qutdoor segments incur annual interest of 7%, plus a vanable element based
on 12-month GBP LIBOR

34. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £9000

Bank loans and overdrafts 35,000 23,303
Accrued interest 29,225 14,991
Amounts owed to group undertakings 4,529 3,894
Deferred tax habiities 2,475 -
74,229 42,188

35. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Bank loans 301,407 112,247
Other loans 1,251,084 649,229
1,552,491 761,476

36. Share capital
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£ £
Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 171,889,147 171,889,147
171,889,147 171,889,147

37. Related party transactions

As disclosed in note 23 and in accordance with the exemptions n FRS 101 the Company 1s not required to disclose
related party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group The Company has
not completed any related party transactions with any other entities or parties

38. Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opinon of the Directors the Company’s immediate and ultimate controlling company 1s Global Radio Group
Limited, a company Incorparated in Jersey

The largest and smailest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated I1s that headed by Global
Media & Entertainment Limitad
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